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Corporate Profile
NIER

ABOUT CYBERPORT

Cyberport is a creative digital community

with a cluster of technology and digital
content tenants. It is managed by Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited
(HKCMCL) which is wholly owned by the
Hong Kong SAR Government. With a vision to
establish itself as a leading information and
communications technology (ICT) hub in the
Asia-Pacific region, Cyberport is committed
to facilitating the local economy by nurturing
ICT industry start-ups and entrepreneurs,
driving collaboration to pool resources and
create business opportunities, and accelerating
ICT adoption through strategic initiatives and
partnerships. Equipped with an array of state-
of-the-art ICT facilities and a cutting-edge

broadband network, the Cyberport community
is home to four grade-A intelligent office
buildings, a five-star design hotel, and a retail
entertainment complex.
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Vision
A =

Establish Cyberport
as a leading ICT hub in
Asia-Pacific region.
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Focus
Ea EEL

Cyberport is committed to facilitating
the local economy by:

e Nurturing ICT industry start-ups and
entrepreneurs to foster local talents;

e Driving collaboration through better
utilization of resources to create
business opportunities;

e Accelerating ICT adoption

through strategic initiatives and
partnerships.
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Key Achievements
oY, i 6% E5

Fulfilling our public mission in a sound financial position

|
AN MR R 1T AR {E on

A

67% sustainable rate in terms of
operation after graduation from the
Cyberport Incubation Programme

R INDR (SN TRBIE B El | BEEARKBE
SmMASLERIE67%

189 incubatees

S NIHEE
189 4

Total revenues amounted
to HK$421.3 million

BUIAE4.213(8 8T

Operating profit before
depreciation amounted to
HK$106.1 million (excluding
expenditure for public mission
activities)

RetInENEEmFIiE1.061EETT

HK$39.2 million i FR0 Offered grants
(including in-kind (REERBH AR IEHSENNIFIST) to 63 projects

sponsorship) through the =T
was allocated for Cyberport Organized and oY o
public mission Creative Micro participated in 29 K} é
activities Fund (CCMF) collaborations and S
s ST 55 showcases =S
NT oRj ll‘. I:I 1GA T 4 o ’ \‘-lr;—_\,
%?%E;ﬁggaﬁ%@ Incubatees and CCMF régﬁ'(gféﬁg)aﬂ% reaching over 3,000 =
37—;? @IE’MEJ: grantees have won SEMIEEE mainland and overseas = 3
h@l%‘ﬂb ) 125 industry awards 631@ practitioners (58 o
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Incubatees and Incubatees received ;5 U
CCMF grantees over HK$60 million . e 3
created 111 in angel investment funding gfta:”'sg?d thgfyber.pf:_rt o
: . artu umni Association JQ
mtellec@ual SRENAREXERARE in JanSary 2013 to enhance T O

properties 7 &7#8386,0008 87T : . “-

/ ’ networking and collaboration
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS R i 18f €5

cture and facilities to deliver an

Hosted 90 ICT-related events,
seminars, conferences, workshops
and training sessions, attended by
13,600 participants

BMMEE0EICTIEEEE) - T E -
Wi TIERIEEIRIES S HIRSI
1.36B AR20

Attracted over
1,200 youths to
join local and
international
competitions

S —3B B AR E
BRIRELS - IRS|¥E38
1,200&FLF 21

130 office tenants employing over 5,000 Steady
people office

BERTEALE10MARES atgmEe | occupancy
385,000 A rate at 86%
AREISE
86%

The Digital Cinema Exchange
connected 118 of the 182 digital
screens in Hong Kong, delivering live
broadcasts of 21 events

[MIRE R X IRTES | EEEE182@ TR
FIREDN118E  RREHRRIZERE
S22 E

Partnered with industry leaders to
provide 30 internship placements
in prominent ICT companies in
Hong Kong and Shanghai with a
specific focus on IT and eHealth
under the Hong Kong-Shanghai
ICT Internship Programme 2012
and the eHealth Record Internship
Pilot Programme 2012

RERBESERITIEBEANE
AR RS BEETEI2012 I R [EF
(ZRReC ek BB B51812012] » IREB
fl EsR2ICTASRILIZEIEEA
BRflEFEmTENSERsE

Built Smart-Space 2 and renovated
Connect-Space to offer ICT start-
ups and entrepreneurs more working
spaces

Upgraded core
network to a
capability with

10Gbps and IPv6
B 32 Smart-Space 2J{84& Connect-

, 3 £ 2 5 48 4 RAPBSRAEZE
Sgpﬂzcja/ﬁ@%T@*ﬁxt%&t%%hL\E 10Gbps 8 i R 1Pv6
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Event Highlights of the Year
FEERSENDOREH
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eHealth Record Internship Pilot
Programme 2012

This programme, the first of its kind

for Hong Kong's healthcare industry,
provided cash subsidies towards the hiring
and training of interns for participating
organizations, including private hospitals,
group practices, IT solution providers

and NGOs, to foster the development of a
territory-wide eHealth Record system.

EFRRCSEE S 82012
EEFAIETNE B AN RER B
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BREDERFHER-

openstack

CLOUD SOFTWARE

September .8

Hong Kong’s first OpenStack
User Group

OpenStack and cloud technology
were promoted to Hong Kong's
ICT community to provide ICT
entrepreneurs and start-ups with
cost-effective access to innovative
cloud-based services.

% # B BlOpenStack A P E£4H
X 3L

HUHS 75 15 OpenStack i 14 & ik RH
HEZAHAICTHA  EICTRER
KB E e UAREKAZ A Ein
ARG HER A S (BB o

Mainland and Hong Kong
ICT Industry Innovation &
Entrepreneurship Symposium

Attendees learned of development trends
and prospects in the ICT industry as well
as collaborative opportunities between
Hong Kong and the mainland China from
speakers that included government officials
from both regions, ICT industry experts,
and entrepreneurs.

PR EFERE SRR REMERA
MAIXBIERE

WIBHERTEBFE B ICTRAZS ki
EXEH RACTTENERBE LA
RS RAMMEBEERNAIERE -

----October +8

Signed a letter of intent with
Guangdong Software Industry
Association on cross-border ICT
development

This letter of intent served as a development

agenda between Cyberport and the
Guangdong ICT industry, opening the door
for local talents to enter the market in
mainland China.

HERBGHITRBERTSEERSE

BERERBIBBEEREANGERRA

SERRETT A BB B R E AT T FAEP

B A3 /35 ) K P9

~—--October +H

| - T

; Delegation to Silicon Valley, USA

1 This networking event brought 46 delegates
|

; from 26 companies in Hong Kong,

| Guangdong and Shanghai together with

! 400 ICT professionals from the USA.

|
|
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---November +—H8
Published the first Annual Report

|

1

|

| To provide a higher level of transparency
| and accountability of its work, Cyberport
| published its first annual report, which

1 won a number of prestigious awards.

|

|

|

|

|

|

|
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----November +—8

ICT Startup Roundtable: How should a
Hong Kong startup face the world?

The Roundtable invited local ICT entrepreneurs to
share their success stories and discuss how local
start-ups could tap into overseas markets and
sources of funding.

HISEICTAIZEREERT : Fi# Startupin
H [ it 57 ?

BEBERICTEERD ZXEIER S Faf 4
A TEMAIFREIINT S EEEBERES -
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR £F 8 & 34 )& &) [0l @

~---December +_H Feb -8
Launch of the Guangdong-Hong Kong ICT ] ebruary -
Young Entrepreneur Programme Cyberp_or_t _web5|te won award for
accessibility

Co-organized by Cyberport and the GDSIA, this joint
programme fostered partnership and encouraged
innovation between Hong Kong and Guangdong ICT
students.

Cyberport website won the Jade Award of Internet
Professional Association’s Web Care Award in
recognition of fulfilling web accessibility and its
commitment in promoting ICT adoption.

|
} InfoMatrix Hong Kong 2013

EHEHN [ EEERMREFAEE
MEESE MEREMHTEH S XRHET REEMILE
SEREICTTENSERHEERES BB MIEERA

BBE-

BiEERERERERER

B BRI E T MR E RIS R [ B EER
BREULE-IFRE] - FE TR BEHEEHEITE
BRNENRRRBITHEDICTE RMENEE-

Around 250 people attended, including
150 student contestants organized into

29 teams from 14 primary and secondary
schools in Hong Kong. Winning teams
represented Hong Kong at the World Finals
of InfoMatrix 2013 in Romania in May.

----December +_H

Launch of Connect-Space

It offers eligible start-ups
and entrepreneurs a shared

P@‘ﬂ M 1
working area without charge. 20112012

. InfoMatrix# ## A Lt #2013
. SENREEEARL EE L EL WS 49250 A2 & F150
Connect-SpaceIE = B A ,,,.,"‘f"' it AR B E B4R /B A K29 - B B
BEBRBES AR R ERME iRE, KA EER20I3FSAERREBE BN E
REHLAITEZTRH- B B 25 2 B [ InfoMatrix Bl BS # 4 A tE B
2013] °

~—-March =8

Graduation Ceremony for the Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Cyberport Creative Micro
Fund Young Entrepreneur Programme

January —HA

Establishment of Cyberport
Startup Alumni Association
(CSAA)

CSAA was established to provide
a networking platform for alumni
graduated from Cyberport

Nine teams from the programme were awarded
a total of HK$900,000 grant money for the
purposes of concept and prototype development.

-
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

-~~~ December +ZH BESNEMA RS BEE FAE

|
|
1
|
e-Commerce exchange between Cyberport Incubation Programme. It also helps - BRI
dG d Provi . Cyberport Easter Fun Day 2013 |
and Guangdong Frovince enhance the bond between alumni L BUSERMER K RERA 0B BT ER
A delegation led by Mr Liu Zhigeng, Vice Governor and Cyberport. Over 16,000 visitors enjoye'd fam|lly—fr|end|y i PR ASAI SIS L AE SR -
of the People’s Government of Guangdong Province, games and performances, mcludlmg an !
visited Cyberport and exchanged insights on the latest HIEHA B e T Easter egg hunt, Easter egg drawing, and a ! T~ ™
ICT development with Cyberport CEO, Mr Herman e e s e meet-and-greet with the Easter Bunny. ‘ et
L d the heads of L (CT o . Be AR N [HIEEEFE] | Fz
am and the heads of severa associations. i = . e ] i
MZEERARREIATES  E e l ==
HE e AN B 5B E E#HZFUN Day 2013 Lo B o
HEE-ERAESTFEEXRRE EBRELEAREERMNEGE  2iE B e HK $100.000
HEREFERIATEAELENERERERE & berort Strtup A Assoiation fﬁ%l ﬁ 7 ﬁﬁﬂﬁ EEJ . faﬂﬁ‘ﬁ {’Eﬁzﬁiﬂ S
STfE - BB T BB AR S £ A RS EICTA WIEER %S e [MEERNWE] % REIBIBLERENE -

BEOBEER RN D FICTEARFER -

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited EEHBEEEARLAA
Annual Report 2012/13 3k 2012/13



Chairman’s Statement
FEMNE

In the second Annual Report of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (Cyberport), | am pleased to report our efforts and
accomplishments in the financial year 2012/13. We experienced
many breakthroughs in our mission to become a leading information
and communications technology (ICT) hub in the Asia-Pacific region,
and laid a strong foundation for future growth.

In late 2010, in response to the Hong Kong government’s Digital
21 Strategy, our Board of Directors revisited our mission and vision,
resulting in a three-year project to invest HK$100 million into ICT.
Through accelerated development of our campus and centres, and
streamlined governance, we are now reaping the benefits of that
investment.

Our five centres have driven Cyberport’s success. At the
Entrepreneurship Centre, the Incubation Programme and Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) fuelled the momentum of Hong Kong's
start-up culture. The Collaboration Centre forged strong bonds

in the Mainland and overseas. The Knowledge Centre delivered
comprehensive ICT-related events and opportunities. The Technology
Centre invested in core network upgrades and cutting-edge tools,
such as cloud computing, digital cinema exchange and the post
production studio. The Campus Development Centre maintained a
steady occupancy rate during the review period after three years of
gradual growth, bringing stable revenues to drive development. Our
CEO, Mr Herman Lam, will elaborate on the progress of each centre
in his report.

In 2011, under the direction and guidance of the Board, our
management team put forward a “Project 12", 12 projects

to improve efficiency while ensuring compliance during our
transformation. These initiatives have demonstrated remarkable
progress. An efficient framework now ensures the reliability of
our operation, while an upgraded financial management system
improves the performance of our financial function. In human
resources, our customized HR system with a new KPIl and
performance appraisal measurement for our staff strengthens
Cyberport’s overall competitiveness.

RERBHHAETEARAR (MHE 85
BDBERE_MNFROEE RREFEX
R[5 B BRAS B 1E 2012/ 1387 B 4F & AR P AT
M8 N MZEBH R B E—F - BUISIEEL
BTZHEAZRENRE  BROSNEE
ARBABHR(ICEREE RIFESL - Wi
PEBRBTARICTIRAN BIZEE— -

Ao B B BT 24 1 ) [ BB 21
HHLM R BB H 20107 K E T
BB (R BFR - 5] TR — (858
TM=FERIE EBICTERER &
ERAREBMNTATONRER  EAK
Fit—FiRE

FR - ARBOLAERTEHABEEHFAIE
B-rEBRPONBBBEFFIIR
(BB BRI BMELES | (CCMP#EZ B A
HWRIESE BRI EE T AR EERA
o S BMNER AR RAABRPOE
MTZECTES) RUHEZEBRE B
LR E 2 B IRIARTTE R AR - B0
BHETRARTE BREXIBIAR
BRHRMEFTEE BAEFERFOAREER
RIRY L5 AR 17 B HEE) BB B 3
R BB TTRASMAGEEKSEER
EHEABRMOFZTLEAFENER

E20115 EEERBEEROIESIFIET
(20124 &) | - R H12ME 7 RIAKE LEX
=@ WHERRMAERITRERZAR %%
HERECESARAKR - LAIHIRT T # AT
ERARTTEERE - WK THBHERR
RARETBOINEE - BICEANERER R
FSIAT —EESRIANANERERS B
L& EMABRE DR E LRI FHE R
HE— MBS EREBNRFES -

We experienced many
breakthroughs in our
mission to become a

leading information and
communications technology
(ICT) hub in the Asia-Pacific
region, and laid a strong
foundation for future growth.

BE—F HIKBES T SR
RERMNRE BEMNR
AEBENFSERAR(ICT)ER
SERBEG MEAEENR
DAEICTIEANBIREE—D -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT & #95E

To streamline campus operation, we launched an online system to
improve facility management in May 2012. Our website integrated
a number of key elements, including a mobile version, improving
accessibility to international standards. Cyberport’s website won
the Gold award at the Office of the Government Chief Information
Officer and the Equal Opportunities Commission’s first ever Web
Accessibility Recognition Scheme.

In 2012, Cyberport became a public body, governed by the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance with stringent codes of compliance,
requiring even higher governance standards for the company and its
employees. To ensure legal and regulatory compliance and protect
the system’s integrity, we invested necessary resources, employed

a compliance and procurement manager, enhanced the corporate
secretarial role and developed an independent internal audit
function.

The year also saw the debut of Cyberport’s first ever annual report, a
major step towards improved transparency for corporate governance.
This annual report gave the public and stakeholders a clearer picture
of the digital hub in detail. The report also won numerous prestigious
international recognitions: in the 2013 ARC Awards, it took a Gold
award in the “Non-profit Organization — Government Agencies &
Offices” category, in additional to two Silver, one Bronze and one
Honours awards in other categories. It was awarded the “Best

New Entry” in the 2013 HKMA Best Annual Reports Awards. Its
outstanding cover illustration also won “Honours Award — Excellence
in Design” in the 2013 Astrid Awards.

At this time, Cyberport is in a healthy financial position, with more
than HK$1 billion in cash and investments. Though the company
recorded a HK$134.4 million loss during the review period, this was
largely due to a depreciation of property, plant and equipment of
HK$208.1 million. The majority of the loss was associated with the
buildings and building facilities, as well as an increase in Cyberport’s
contribution to public mission activities. Excluding depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the operating profit recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2013 stood at HK$73.7 million, signifying a
healthy financial status which enabled Cyberport to endeavour in its
mission.

In the coming year, we see a great deal of work before us as we
move towards our ultimate goal of becoming the leading ICT hub
in the Asia-Pacific region. To achieve the objectives set forth by
our five centres, we will strengthen our capabilities in key areas.
The Entrepreneurship Centre’s aim of nurturing ICT start-ups and
entrepreneurs will be met through the expansion of CCMF, the

SIEEEEREE HAN2012F5AHHT
E2HWEERGAERERRE B 7AW
ETREH B TEARDBAREIN B
BRBF T A BEIFREE R EER - WiR
SHBEFEMMREERAERTERET
EefRaEEEREERTTEINS
5% o

01258 BERE /N HBE X (BLLMHE
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HIT— R BEREEERBRERER
RBEE RANAWENBEE L3I AB
Y ARE R BRBIEEEE G HE
BRSEERA AL IT

BN BIEERAFERRTENER X
B MRS E RERERRL  WEE LA
NEMSABZHBABIBEENBERRA
B-ZFHREXSASTE EELEBIKRSE
WAEREIERLE - BFE1E2013 ARC Awards
2R [ IEAR R AR — BRI K 2009 ) 48
Rl 6 & 5 4% - I 7F E b 48 Bl w15 PR (E 3R 42 -
—EfRiER —REEREE: REBEREER
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FEamBNEE - ARET #Ma8 BT
EE2.081EB T - # £201343A31H - &
BT BEMREIEERE AFEZ
B A A7 3708 BT RIREESE B BB K
ARORBEEE - BE DA MEBRITRED -

RERF KK RECE BEFEHED
BERBEXNRICTIRANREBRER
Wi b ZEEFHAE - BB RP O EITHE
5o R A LGB BIBRCCMF - [BUFE 815
Batdl] REMAM BB ERMIEAR B
MARBE RIS EEREER - MBIED LA

Incubation Programme, and related projects within Hong Kong

and across its borders. Local entrepreneurs will find the help they
need to tap into mainland China markets through the Collaboration
Centre, which plans to establish a Guangzhou Representative Office
and strengthen collaborative ties with Shanghai’s Knowledge and
Innovation Community.

The Knowledge Centre will continue to enhance local ICT
knowledge and draw outside expertise to Hong Kong through
world-class international networkings and events such as the
Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum, WikiSym 2013, and the
Asia Pacific Information and Communications Technology Awards
2013. Cloud computing’s global momentum makes it integral

to the Technology Centre’s plans to bring cutting-edge industry
tools to Hong Kong through the establishment of a community
cloud and cloud lab at the Cyberport campus. To further develop
an inspirational and creative campus environment, the Campus
Development Centre is expanding the Smart-Space area and
implementing a core network enhancement to improve the services
offered. In addition, we are in the process of formulating our next
Strategic Plan for the period from 2014/15 to 2016/17.

Finally, on behalf of Cyberport’s Board of Directors, | would like to
thank recently retired board members Mr Anthony Au Wai Hung,
Mr Daniel Lai, Ms Winnie J. Ng, Ms Wong Sau Ying and Mr Stanley
Ying Yiu Hong, who made tremendous contributions to Cyberport
over the years. | am also delighted to welcome our new members to
the Board, including Ms Rosanna Choi Yi Tak, Ms Susie Ho Shuk
Yee, Mr Edwin Lee Kan Hing, Mr Gabriel Pang Tsz Kit and Ms Jeny
Yeung Mei Chun. Each comes to Cyberport with a wealth of expertise
and experience gained from holding vital positions in a number

of industries and organizations, and will undoubtedly bring new
perspectives to our board and management.

Cyberport’s success is due to the commitment of the people who
stand behind this digital community. In our mission to become

a leading ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific region, the diligence of our
management team, devotion of our staff, trust of our stakeholders
and contributions of our partners have been vital. We are exceedingly
grateful for their on-going support, and | thank them all for their drive
and dedication. It is their spirit of relentless innovation that moves
Cyberport and Hong Kong alike towards a brighter future.

Paul CHOW Man Yiu, GBS, SBS, JP
Chairman,
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review

THBRBRS

Cyberport is a community on a quest to nurture the next generation
of IT legends. By providing the synergy and the fertile ground
necessary for the cultivation of talent and innovation, this dynamic
community is building a thriving ICT industry in Hong Kong. The
130 companies based at Cyberport as of March 2013 range from
internationally renowned industry giants to home-grown SMEs, with
over 5,000 people currently employed at the hub.

At the heart of Cyberport are five interdependent centres, each of
which plays a unigue role in advancing our mission and nurturing
ICT talent. Our Entrepreneurship Centre supports ICT start-ups
early in their development through initiatives like the Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund (CCMF), which in the past year granted a

total of HK$2.9 million in funding to 29 ICT projects, bringing the
total number of grantees under the scheme to 63 and there were
33 innovative projects completed. The overwhelming success of
CCMF inspired the Centre to pursue the expansion of microfunding
opportunities outside of Hong Kong through the launch of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong ICT Young Entrepreneur Programme

in 2012, which also promotes collaboration between the two
regions. A keystone in the Centre’s fostering of new talent is the
Cyberport Incubation Programme, offering promising ICT start-ups
the technological resources and business training necessary to
establish a solid business footing and grow their companies, as

well as financial assistance and aid in finding angel investors; the
programme’s 189 incubatees have received over HK$60 million in
angel investment funding. Together, CCMF grantees and incubatees
have won 125 industry awards, including the Red Herring 100 Asia
Award 2012 and 100 Global Award 2012, and 13 awards won by
eight Cyberport incubatees and alumni at the Hong Kong ICT Awards
2013. They have also together created 111 intellectual properties
and numerous jobs within the region, thereby adding to the city’s
growing ICT industry. Through these and other programmes, the
Entrepreneurship Centre helps to provide a solid foundation for Hong
Kong's next generation of ICT talent.

BB —EURITET RO T BHEER
BRNE BIEMEEATMBRRIEN
BRI HEBBEBICTERBLAA - #1E2013
F3H - & 130 BB A2 A M A /)
REEER BN - B2 A B B5,000A °

AARF LB BONZOAERID  Bfe
EERBREN RS ER 258
KBTI AREDHEFICTAA - FR - &
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B BEp HEAE29MEICTIE B ECCMFHE H ££
2008 B LA B - SFFEIE BhAYTE B BBy
INZE63ME MEFM33EeZIBE B KB IEF
FERK o B CCMFATEIMALINAEER « Lk
ERHAESHEZSEBUIMNIE - WIEF
HEE (2012 B E AR SERESS ]
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By providing the synergy
and the fertile ground necessary
for the cultivation of talent
and innovation, the Cyberport
community is building a thriving
ICT industry in Hong Kong.
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A launch pad for local ICT innovators, the Collaboration Centre
helps Hong Kong enterprises explore and capture emerging
business opportunities in mainland China and overseas markets.
In Guangdong, Cyberport signed a cross-border collaboration
agreement with the Guangdong Software Industry Association
(GDSIA), and co-organized the 1%t Guangdong-Hong Kong Cloud
Computing Conference in 2012. The Centre also strengthened
its close partnership with Shanghai's Knowledge & Innovation
Community (KIC) by co-organizing the 24-hour Hong Kong -
Shanghai Hackathon programme, which drew over 130 participants
and spawned 25 great new ideas.

On the international stage, Cyberport joined the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council in co-organizing the very first Hong Kong ICT
Mission to Silicon Valley in October 2012. The mission was an
unprecedented success, garnering significant business leads and
media coverage, and opening doors to potential future collaborations
in the USA. The Centre also organized a reciprocal visit to
Knowledge Capital, its partner hub in Osaka, to pursue opportunities
for collaboration in Japan. During the year under review, Cyberport
also welcomed the Canadian delegation at the HKTDC International
ICT Expo on 16 April 2012, where they exchanged knowledge and
experience with local ICT practitioners. These are but a few of the
activities and opportunities arranged by the Collaboration Centre to
help establish Hong Kong as a thriving ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific
region.

From building bridges with other regions, we move to fostering
greater ICT expertise within Hong Kong itself. Our Knowledge Centre
advances local ICT talent primarily by organizing knowledge-based
events and programmes, creating industry-related positions, and
implementing digital inclusion initiatives. It has developed a strong
execution engine, delivering 90 ICT-related events, seminars,
conferences, workshops, and training sessions, with 13,600
participants over the past year. A majority of these were world-class
or industry-recognized events covering hot technology topics as well
as informative patenting and commercialization sessions for long-
term start-up success. The Centre also contributed to the Mainland
and Hong Kong ICT Industry Innovation & Entrepreneurship
Symposium, a large-scale industry event organized by the Mainland
and Hong Kong governments, with experts sharing how to leverage
technology and development trends in both markets and take
advantage of collaborative opportunities between the two regions.
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Comprehensive youth activities were organized to nurture future
ICT professionals. Over 1,200 young people participated in local
and international competitions designed to ignite creativity and
innovation, such as the Hong Kong Youth 3D Animation Competition
2012, Hong Kong Digital Game Development Competition, Hong
Kong International Science Fair 2012, and InfoMatrix Hong Kong
2013. For students of higher education, Cyberport launched its
second Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship Programme 2012 in
June, placing a total of 20 interns with leading ICT firms situated

in Shanghai. Cyberport also launched eHealth Record Internship
Pilot Programme for the Hospital Authority in May 2012, offering
|CT talents 10 internships and the opportunity to work on electronic
health record related projects for six months.

The Technology Centre turns knowledge sharing into action by
providing the cutting-edge tools necessary to develop Hong Kong's
ICT enterprises into a state-of-the-art industry at the forefront of ICT
development. During the review period, Cyberport invested $20.6
million on an upgraded network capable of 10Gbps and IPv6. A
new trial cloud platform was launched to serve both internal and
external users, along with Hong Kong's first OpenStack User Group
to support increased adoption of cloud computing technologies.
Hong Kong's entertainment sector and movie-going public also
benefited from the Centre’s expertise, as of March 2013, 118

of Hong Kong's 182 digital screens connected to Cyberport’s

Digital Cinema Exchange (DCX) network, and the screening of

21 live events. The Centre also collaborated with the Hong Kong
Wireless Technology Industry Association to transform the Wireless
Development Centre into the new Mobility Experience Centre
(MEC), which will showcase state-of-the-art mobile technologies and
solutions to the public. With the widespread popularity and rapid
evolution of mobile gadgets, MEC will require on-going investment to
remain current and relevant. Nevertheless, it stands as an innovation
step forward in engaging and educating the general public and
tearing down the digital divide.
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None of these shining achievements would have been possible
without our Campus Development Centre, which manages the
facilities and services that ensure the comfort of our guests,
tenants and incubatees. In addition to numerous facilities upgrades
throughout the year, the Centre has also launched a series of
specialized working spaces to cater to the needs of technology-
based companies. During the period under review, construction
was underway on Smart-Space 2, a 971 m? addition to Cyberport’s
Smart-Space 1, which is in high demand. The Centre launched
Connect-Space in December 2012, providing a free, shared working
area to ICT start-ups and enterprises.

In following the successes of our Cyberport Incubation Programme
graduates, we realized the need for a cohesive communication
platform that would enhance the bond between the digital hub and
its alumni. The Cyberport Startup Alumni Association (CSAA) was
established in January 2013 to promote start-up culture, nurture ICT
talent in the community, and to help inspire the next generation of IT
legends.

Throughout all this, our most important resource has been our

staff. We have continued to invest in our employees, by honing their
technical skills and managerial talent, refining their communication
skills and keeping up-to-date on compliance issues. An average

of 3.5 training days per employee was offered to staff members
during the past year. Programmes such as our Healthy Eating Weeks,
and paternity leave for male staff, instituted in January 2013, all
contribute to a better work-life balance and a more fulfilling career at
Cyberport.

Cyberport is proud to be a socially responsible member of the

Hong Kong community, and recipient of the “Caring Company”

logo for three consecutive years which recognize our devoted

effort to the community. Through green initiatives during the year
under review, Cyberport actively sought to reduce its environmental
impact, winning the Wastewi$e Label “Class of Excellence” for
source separation of waste and 2" Runner-up in the Power Smart
Biggest Unit Saver Award for smart energy use, and scoring its

8™ consecutive Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Excellent Class)
since 2004. On and beyond our campus, Cyberport also advocates a
positive and healthy lifestyle by organizing and supporting CyberRun

LB BN R BT EENEEER
HEE RETENER - EREERESR
D TMBRZ N BBENGE HPREX
BERBAEX —[EREIRE - P OEF
NETZERERETRE TREFZENT
B UEARIFE AR BRMFE-FA
Smart-Space 2/ T2 IEfE#E1TH - THEA T2
A& 0 ¥ 1E R B Smart-Space 189 £ |-
FIMENNO71F KR - IS ZERAR
Y& Sk o 0 B20124F 12 A #£ ¥ H Connect-
Spacezt 2l - BICTRE A 1b 2 R ABRE 1 S IR MHt
RCEHBAIFEM SEAME S ERE
7o

ZENUR [BBBEEAS ] WEEXRRE
FABAIES RREREBRR Rt
MEFHEENEZESR [HBEAXET]
20135 1 A IE A B IZ » T fPS B3 L2 55 18 2l %7
MR FREEREZ AL REH A K
ICTIRIR > BB E Z I TE A Mt £ -

EEHE BIRERRMREENEE-Z
FUR - BHA—ERRAREERMIEET
MAFESMNEEFHTER TI.5KE &
FNEBREREERER  BBRIINE - UK
HERTAEBNEECSS  DERETFHR
HIEFE - B2013F 1 AR - BFHEM T — &
JIMEER/AER B [ERRE] A
LRBTHERS BRSBETIERBEEED
BREEZH TReBEAREERNEE-

BERETCELS T TG B QRN A
HOMBRMACEEIFEE (ERERE]Z
REES AT - FR - EEYMRESE
HEQRERAE BEESSS I IEE
REYIREE S B RT8 — SRR B S R
[AMEE S E-SRAERE | 5
RENTREE - HIE 52004F L EE
SELE [ENTEREEZHEHE (LK)
RE - ZORBMEMERERHEERNSH -
TmAERERAIN 85 E1IRE FmEEN
EFRRERE-BMEXZRT [B@EBFEEL
2012 - [E9441R%4772013 ] ~ [B LD EKRLT

2012, Walking on Air for Playright 2013, Sharing for a Cause 2013
and more. We hope to continue contributing to society and engaging
the community as a good corporate citizen.

For the 2012/13 financial year, our total revenues amounted to
$421.3 million, representing an increase of about 1.6% over
2011/12. Operating profit before depreciation and tax was HK$73.7
million in 2012/13, representing a slight drop of 3.3% over the
previous year because of an increase in expenditure for public
mission activities. Excluding Cyberport’s contribution to public
mission activities, the operating profit before depreciation and tax
grew 2.4%, to HK$106.1 million. Cyberport’s contribution to public
mission activities includes in-kind sponsorship in 2012/13, worth
HK$39.2 million, compared with HK$34 million in 2011/12, on pace
with our commitment of investing HK$100 million across the 3 years.

The year 2012/13 has been one of great benefits and opportunities
for Cyberport, in terms of our public mission as well as our financial
management, compliance and corporate social responsibility
initiatives. We will continue to strive to establish Cyperport as a
leading ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific region and see many more great
opportunities awaiting in the years to come to expand our tenancy
while also continuing to improve our operations. Our management
team owes a debt of thanks to our tenants, the Board, our partners
and allies, as well as to the entire staff for their continuous support
and commitment. | look forward to an even more successful year of
2013/14.

Herman LAM Heung Yeung
Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Chairman * JE

Paul CHOW Man Yiu
X #, GBS, SBS, JP
Chairman of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management
Company Limited
BEEYUBEEEFRLA
EERERE

Mr Paul Chow retired as the Chief Executive and Executive Director of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited in January 2010. Prior to this, he was the Chief
Executive, Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Region, of HSBC Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited from April 1997 to April 2003 as well as the Chief Executive of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited from
October 1991 to January 1997 and from January 1990 to October 1991 respectively.

Mr Chow is currently an independent non-executive director of the Bank of China
Limited, an independent non-executive director of China Mobile Limited, a member of
the Council and the Court of the University of Hong Kong and its Treasurer, a member
of the Steering Committee on Innovation and Technology of the Hong Kong SAR
Government, a member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Business Cooperation Committee of
the Hong Kong SAR Government and a member of the Asian Advisory Committee of
AustralianSuper Pty Ltd.
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Board Members ==/ &

Rosanna CHOI Yi Tak
EIE

(Appointed on 5 June 2012 )
(20125F6 A5 A EZ1E)
Partner of CWCC

REEEETEHREBA

Ms Rosanna Choi, the Past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong, has been serving

the global body for professional accountants as a Hong Kong Committee member since
2002. She is currently a member of the ACCA (Global) Council and the
Vice-chairperson of its Resource Oversight Committee.

Ms Choi is a CWCC CPA partner and audit specialist, leading one of the audit teams.
She chairs the firm’s Training Committee and IT Committee, enhancing staff skills and
productivity, and the effective use of information technology.

She is also an executive committee member of Social Venture Hong Kong, a council
member of Hong Kong Baptist University, and an audit committee member of the Urban
Renewal Authority.
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Board Members EEF K &

Susie HO Shuk Yee
A 52, JP

(Appointed on 8 October 2012)
(2012F10A8R EZE)

Permanent Secretary for Commerce
& Economic Development
(Communications & Technology)
MHRREEREEENER
(GEMRERH)

George HONGCHOY Kwok Lung
FEE

Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of The Link
Management Limited
FEEEFRARAHITESER
TEARR

Herman HU Shao Ming
#ARERA, BBS, JP

Chairman of Ryoden Development
Limited

ZEERARAFDERE

Ms Susie Ho was Deputy Secretary for Financial Services (later renamed Deputy
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Financial Services)) from

July 1999 to October 2003, Deputy Secretary for Health, Welfare and Food
(Welfare) from October 2003 to July 2004, and Deputy Secretary for Health,
Welfare and Food (Health) from July 2004 to November 2006. She was Director

of Administration and Development in the Department of Justice from November
2006 to April 2012. She was Commissioner for Transport from July to early October
2012. She has taken up the appointment of Permanent Secretary for Commerce
and Economic Development (Communications and Technology) since 8 October
2012.
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Mr George Hongchoy is Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of The Link
Management Limited, with experience in investment banking, financial consulting
and accounting in Asia and New Zealand. Mr Hongchoy is a director of Asia Pacific
Real Estate Association Limited and the Chairman of its Hong Kong Chapter Board.
He is also a member of the Asia Executive Board of the Wharton School, the
Faculty Advisory Committee of Faculty of Business at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Governor of the Canadian International School.
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Mr Herman Hu is the Chairman of Ryoden Development Limited. He serves as a
Deputy of the 12 National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China.
Apart from this, he is the Council Chairman of City University of Hong Kong, a
member of the Hong Kong Sports Commission, a member of the Council on
Human Reproductive Technology and an Independent Non-Executive Director of
i-CABLE Communications Limited.
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Board Members EE F i &

Edwin LEE Kan Hing
FIRE

(Appointed on 5 June 2013)
(201346 A5HEZ )

Founder & Chief Executive Officer
of BridgeWay Business Builder &
Broker Company Limited

B O T M B I R AT AR R

LEE Shing See
Z= % {1, GBS, OBE, JP

Mr Edwin Lee is the Founder and Chief Executive Officer of BridgeWay Business
Builder and Broker Company Limited, a leading entrepreneurial advisory firm that
has sold over 1,000 businesses in Hong Kong. Mr Lee was the sole awardee of

the 2010 Hong Kong Business Awards: Young Entrepreneur Award by DHL/South
China Morning Post and named one of the 2011 Ten Outstanding Young Persons
by Junior Chamber International (HK). Mr Lee is a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) and a Certified Business Intermediary (CBI). He received his B.S. in Finance
and M.S. in Accounting from the University of Southern California, USA. He earned
his Doctor of Business Administration (DBA) degree at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a research focus in entrepreneurship. Currently, he is enrolled in the
3-year Owner/President Management Program at Harvard Business School.
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Mr Lee Shing See is a fellow of both the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and
the Institution of Civil Engineers (UK), as well as a former Secretary for Works

of the Hong Kong SAR Government. He is the Chairman of the Construction
Industry Council, a Board member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority, a member
of the Development Committee of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
and the Convenor of the Panel on Promoting Testing and Certification Services

in Construction Materials Trade. He also serves as a member of the Education,
Employment and Training Task Force of the Commission on Poverty, and the Vice
Chairperson of the CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee.
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Board Members EEF K &

Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit
BT

(Appointed on 5 June 2012)
(20126 ASHEZ 1)

Managing Director of
Firedog Creative Company Limited

RMAEERA R ERRZE

Douglas SO Cheung Tak
BEE

Executive Director, Charities/
General Counsel of The Hong
Kong Jockey Club
ERESOLEEEHHNITEE
HEEEER

Mr Gabriel Pang is currently the Managing Director of Firedog Creative Company
Limited and has more than 16 years of experience in IT and Creative industries
in Hong Kong. Mr Pang is one of the pioneers in Hong Kong's game development
field, and founded the famous game company “Firedog Studio” in 1999. He has
been the chairman of Hong Kong Digital Entertainment Association since 2008,
and puts a lot of effort into promoting Hong Kong’s digital entertainment industry.
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Mr Douglas So is a solicitor of Hong Kong. He joined The Hong Kong Jockey Club
in 2000 and currently serves as its Executive Director of Charities, General Counsel
and Company Secretary.

Mr So is the Secretary of the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF; a director of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong; a member of: the Societal Engagement Task
Force under the Commission on Poverty; the Board of Management of the Jockey
Club Centre for Positive Ageing; the Committee on Research and Development

of Chinese Medicines; the Selection Committee of Innovation and Technology
Scholarship Award Scheme; the EXCEL3 Advisory Committee of the University of
Hong Kong; the Steering Committee of CUHK Jockey Club Initiative Gaia and the
Management Committee of the Jockey Club Design Institute for Social Innovation of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr So is also a Trustee of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund; a
director of Chun Tok School and an advisor of Foodlink.

BHEREERBEBEBEM - BREEN200FMABTEES S RRABEEH
WITHRE " BREZER UREARMER-
BRELEBHRAMABERELSEALZEGNE B LR ES KEZE M
e2HEF/|VELZE BEEeESREEZEENE FEMRLEREZES
KB RIFRIREESHEBRELZESNE ABARE [EE e BHREES
ZE BERNABRES SRR RTHEEZEGNEUREBBEIANER
et galFRihEREEEER -
HAENAEPESETENERERERXTEA EEERRENREOE
B e

\

o8> 00 D

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

Annual Report 2012/13

EEBGEEEEGRAR
3§ 2012/13



28

BOARD OF DIRECTORS &£5

Board Members EE F i &

Elizabeth TSE Man Yee
w1 P
Permanent Secretary for Financial

Services and the Treasury
(Treasury)

MREBREBREETHER
(E#)

Alfred WONG Kwok Kuen
HEE

Peter YAN King Shun

ERE

Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited

M RAGEEERARBITES
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Ms Elizabeth Tse was Deputy Secretary for the Treasury (later renamed Deputy
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Treasury)) from July 1999 to
April 2006, Director of Administration from April 2006 to October 2007, Permanent
Secretary of the Chief Executive’s Office from October 2007 to April 2010 and
Permanent Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development (Communications
and Technology) from 26 April 2010 to 24 July 2012. She has taken up the
appointment of Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
(Treasury) since 25 July 2012.
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Mr Alfred Wong was the Chief Technology Officer and Head of Information
Technology Division of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX) since
April 2004 until he retired in September 2010. Earlier in his career, Mr Wong

had held several other senior IT positions at the HKEx and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong since rejoining the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in November 1992.
Mr Wong was a project leader at the Australian Stock Exchange and a consultant
application engineer at Australia’s Westpac Banking Corporation between 1987 and
1992.

HEESLEB2004F4 A REERER S REEMBR AR (BRAT) BFERHE
BEEN EARMRIEE  EE2010F98 B K -EZ AN BELES  mLED
M1987E1992F A ERUEM B AR SAMIER £ & - L RRNAKX T FIRT
(Westpac Banking Corporation) H & /B [ TA2R0 - 3R 199211 A ER BB &
HERGE FERBRIREBESRR S EEEMNRMTEFIM 2 @ = 55

fiL e

Mr Peter Yan is the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Computer
and Technologies Holdings Limited, where he is responsible for the group’s overall
business operations covering Hong Kong and mainland China.

With extensive experience serving on a range of public services committees,
including the Transport Advisory Committee and the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal
Panel, Mr Yan is also a member of the Assessment Panel of the Innovation and
Technology Support Programme of the Government Innovation and Technology
Fund, the Advisory Committee for the Master of Science in Information and
Technology Management at the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a life-time
Fellow and Vice President of the Hong Kong Computer Society.

EREAERENBARERERARANTEERITHAE BEZERER
7 KR B A i B BE B T

FARERARSEZBEHENR BEXBHAZES ENLEERESE TR
BUFRIF BRI RS E T [RI# RB R 8 FFEZ B €28 - FAPXK
BENEMREEESRINAARE SRR AAEHBRRIERRKEE
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Board Members EEF K &

Jeny YEUNG Mei Chun

(o E$2

(Appointed on 5 June 2012)

(2012F6 ASAKZRT)
Commercial Director of the MTR
Corporation Limited

TRARERARHFAE

Ms Jeny Yeung is the Commercial Director and a Member of the Executive
Directorate of MTR Corporation Limited. Ms Yeung is a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing. She is also a member of the Marketing Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association, the Advisory Committee on
Publicity and Public Education in Innovation and Technology of the Innovation and
Technology Commission of the Hong Kong SAR Government, and the Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

BERPLTHRARBAERERAFAGRERNTREEKRB BRI RE
BREATHEENERER TRABEEEEXHEHEEEZBEXZ8 &
BERBFEFMNMRBAFNREERARHEAALRECGZEURETEES
BRREEERRBEANZESZRE -

Retired/Resigned Directors BB BEZEEZR/AK E

Daniel LAI
#$51E, BBS, JP

(Resigned on 8 October 2012)
(20124 10A8H & fF)
Government Chief Information
Officer

BT & AR R

WONG Sau Ying

BEER

(Retired on 4 June 2013)
(M2013F6 4R R )

Head of Corporate
Communications of

the Hong Kong &

China Gas Company Limited
BEEHERTERAA
EEEMAR

Mr Daniel Lai is a veteran ICT professional in Hong Kong with extensive experience
in the IT field. He joined the Hong Kong SAR Government as Government Chief
Information Officer in January 2012.

Mr Lai served in Hong Kong Electric Company Limited between 1968 and 1978.
From 1978 to 1998, he worked for the Hong Kong Jockey Club (the former Royal
Hong Kong Jockey Club) and held various senior IT managerial positions in Hong
Kong and Australia. Between 1999 and 2011, Mr Lai worked as the Head of
Information Technology in MTR Corporation Limited.

He served on the Board of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
from 2003 to 2009.

BHEEERANBERNEMMBAMRERAL BREENEALR X
R2012F 1A MAT B R EERA  BEBRFEAR KBS —B-

FBAEE NI FEZ=1978F HIME R B B E AR A (T8 - £1978F £ 19984F
H MEBREEESS (AREMNERTEESS) WESBMBMEEZE
BRI EE TR R1999F Z201 1F M BAEEHTEBEHEERAAE
MBI EE -

2003 E2009F BifE b N B T B B S BB EEAR AR ZES -

Ms Wong Sau Ying's extensive experience as a social worker, journalist and
corporate communication professional is reflected in the variety of public and
committee boards she served. Alongside a media career that has spanned

major local and foreign news agencies, Ms Wong was a board member of the
Broadcasting Authority from September 2007 to March 2012 and is currently a
member of the Environmental Campaign Committee. She is currently Head of
Corporate Communications with the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited.

EFRLLTERZEAAMERZEGRE UERENVLETIE HBELE
M EEERITI B T AR T EEEAE N EEIE TR 5712007
FIORE0I2F3ANMBEEBEEHBEERNEFTEXNEMRERFREEDHE
BgZB -5t HRATETERRARAANCEERAE -
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Corporate Structure

NERE
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Marketing
Winnie WONG
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* Since 14 May 2013
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FHESS
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BEtESE

Chief Financial
Officer and
Company Secretary
Cavan CHEUNG
TS RE R ARIE

25921

Head of
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Chris HUI

BERHENTE
R

Head of Campus
Management
Raymond HO
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EEHEE

X

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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Chief Executive Officer
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NEIE

Chief Operating Officer

Mark O. CLIFT
BEmE
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BEEAIZEPIN
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BT RE L
RE5E

Entrepreneurship
Centre Committee
EEERDI
REE

Head of HR & Admin.
Joyce CHENG
ANERRITHEEE
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Head of
Technical Services
Andy HO
BETENEER
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Acting
General Manager
of Le Méridien
Cyberport
Tim BILFINGER*
E S
EIRBILTR
BHRE

Chief
Technology Officer
David CHUNG
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EEE

Our Management Team
H NS 12E

Herman LAM #k [ 5
Mark O.CLIFT Z#tk
Cavan CHEUNG & F i
David CHUNG $Z{&5&
Winnie WONG =2 i#
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Shero YIP ZE i}
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Alice SO &k B

Alison TAM :ERE 1%
Raymond HO fa#& 32
Andy HO {aT#28

Chris HUI #F7K
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Tim BILFINGER B /&~E)
(not pictured AR F )

s o e
i

lllf
’l @5;?}:

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

Annual Report 2012/13

EEBGEEEEGRAR
3§ 2012/13



32

Corporate Information
NIEH

Entrepreneurship Centre

EEZEARO
Collaboration Centre
AEAR
Address 1h 31k
. s ' __ Technology Centre
Hong Kong Cyberport Management EHBBEEERRAAF B
Company Limited
Units 1102-1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2 BB EE B EL005%
100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong G E2E1112110281104F
Tel: (852) 3166 3800 B3 (852) 3166 3800
Fax: (852) 3166 3118 5. (852) 3166 3118
Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk B H: enquiry@cyberport.hk
Website: www.cyberport.hk #4841 - www.cyberport.hk
Shanghai Representative Office FBRERRE
Unit 204B, 2/F, 1 KIC, KIC Plaza, 234 Song Hu Road, o B _E S8 T 45 07 R R VB 852345
Yang Pu District, Shanghai, PRC B R B E IS 158 204BE
Tel: (86-21) 55122815 EiE: (86-21) 55122815
Fax: (86-21) 55122816 f#H : (86-21) 55122816
Auditor ¥% B
KPMG EEH A EBA
Principal Bankers FEERRIT
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITHRT () BRAF
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited BELBELCRITERAA
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited FEIRIT (BB BRAF
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited ERIRT(FB)BRAA
Solicitors e
Mayer Brown JSM FFEITERDTT
COMPANY SECRETARY NEFE
\ Knowledge Centre Campus
Cavan Cheung T AR AT B RO Development Centre

EE L2/
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Promoting creativity and ICT
start-ups with financial support
and professional services

MRER SXZE X BBRIR
SRICTRISE (L ED

The mission of Cyberport's Entrepreneurship Centre is to nurture TEERPONTEZEBEHEVBEY-
ICT start-ups through financial assistance, support and professional BRIBEARSEESERS BEEBICT
services offered during the early stages of commercial development. ERANA HFICTELSCEELS A

These aims are achieved primarily through the Cyberport Creative BRI -HAOLOEEEBE [BHESAEMAES ]
Micro Fund and the Cyberport Incubation Programme. RIS AEEE | BEEEm-
- c 1E P The Entrepreneurship Centre, formerly known as the Cyberport EBREFALAG A SIS IREES
M ISSION (a]2) Digital Entertainment Incubation-cum-Training Centre (IncuTrain BEs)lF0 ] - B2005%F 10 AL AR - — &
. > Centre), was established in October 2005 to support the development B R BhFE S D EM P /D2 - (REHB
Foster ICT industry development and promote 3 4 ° R o .
ICT entrepreneurs};ﬂp. P 3 ICTISR BV R U 1 BRICT RIS AR of start-ups and SMEs in the digital entertainment and creative LRABEETEFEDER i [BIEEEE
SEICTISNALR SEEER -BERTFEE lifestyle industries. Originally sponsored by the Innovation and e BYTEAF R ERESER TR -
Assist ICT entrepreneurs in the EEEEEHIE. Technology Fund, the Incubation Programme has been supported by~ B201242 7 44 Al 2 & 35 i@ BUS 8 B 17 #
commercialization of products, services and Cyberport through its own funding since February 2012. R AEET BB E

platforms. REAUIEEAMICTIIRNAT » HWEVKBICTRR
NER-

Groom and develop local ICT talents as part
of Cyberport’s larger mission to promote ICT
development within Hong Kong.

EHAHEEEEGRARA
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During the year under review, the Entrepreneurship Centre added
a number of new services and programmes to further its mission of
supporting Hong Kong’s development as an ICT hub in Asia. These
new features included the Connect-Space, shared workspace for
collaboration; the Guangdong-Hong Kong ICT Young Entrepreneur
Programme to nurture potential entrepreneurs as well as foster
collaboration between Hong Kong and Guangdong; special ICT
training sessions for professionals; and a series of outbound
networking events for Cyberport incubatees, alumni and industry
professionals.

Connect-Space

In 2012, Cyberport launched the Connect-Space, which advances
the Entrepreneurship Centre’s mission by offering eligible start-
ups and entrepreneurs a shared working area without charge. This
common space drives in-person interaction and discussion, while
regular networking events held in the space encourage participants
to explore synergistic collaboration.

Successful applicants of the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund,
Cyberport incubatees and Collaboration Centre service subscribers
are eligible to use the Connect-Space. In addition to the open-space
shared working area with power-charging facilities, the Connect-
Space includes access to conference rooms, a multi-purpose room,
brainstorming room, pantry, fitness centre, mailbox, locker and high-
speed Wi-Fi network.

FR GEBRPLOTET —RIORS
Rt &l LA — P F B A D NICTHE
MeoELMNBEERERHEAATHEERM
#JConnect-Space * #& LA & 1 % A 4 F {2
EEEMMAEN BB EERNKEFAIE
ETEl] - BINEBABEEALTRBICTHIIR
B UARABEIBEZIEE AR BATEINE
E¥NBRERESBBENEIINIREBE -

Connect-Space

b E B R RO E201 24 H#E 2 #7 8 Connect-
Spaceit &l BE BB A QA R EREM
SELATIEEM  EAREXENEBMNG
e EERRERREE WHEEAE
ZRBRE IER R o

[EBIEBREMAE S KINEREE  8IE
SEBERARRBEFLRBERAEHFEE
#4% Fi Connect-Space L FA 2=  {# & K a]
ZHRBERERBEMNAMRNLA TEEM
SNERIAERSRE ZHRBREHE D
MEE - HOKE 5 RE - BE - RYER

Cyberport Creative Micro Fund

The Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) was launched, as a pilot
scheme in August 2009 and a full official programme in 2011, to
promote innovation by providing seed funding of HK$100,000 over
a six-month period to companies developing creative ICT-related
products or services, for the purposes of concept and prototype
development.

As of 31 March 2013, CCMF has granted a total of 63 awards to
start-up projects throughout the years and there were 33 projects
completed. With continuous support to groom and develop these
ICT talents, a total of 22 grantees have been admitted to the
Cyberport Incubation Programme. Projects are still in progress and
development, including 9 grantees from the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Cyberport Creative Micro Fund — Young Entrepreneur Programme,
9 from CCMF (Hong Kong) and 10 from the Guangdong-Hong Kong
ICT Young Entrepreneur Programme.

Hong Kong Programme

The Hong Kong Programme provides local ICT talents with two
streams of CCMF, namely the Professional Stream and the Hong
Kong Young Entrepreneur Programme (HK YEP).

37

BBEAEMERE

[BUS BRI ME RS | (CCMF)R200948 A
AT E2011FERHET-FHEIRHTBE
TTREFES  BBEICTA B EmIRBEH
RE RANEARNEER BB MAEEL

Eme

B ZF2013%F3 8318 - CCMF& # m631E
BE AL A EP33EEE LK 22
MBEEN2INEEXIDNA [HEEEE
gl SRE—EITER B A 5 EMD
RBINL [BIS BRI BMALES « FESFA
2| 2901 ORI CCMF (Fi) 212
FOARION [BBEEREEFAIEAE
2MELEERESESER-

FiE T E

BB B AAIICTE A RERM AR B0
CCMF:t 8l SRR [HE B [EBF
FRIZEE -

Hong Kong Programme 2012
FiE 812012

‘H“"F
'-rl £ ULt ]

L

220

" : D" programme applications received
c;&mrport b - é ;j& I‘l& jE:UZZO{/]j\ EFI E%—:

RSHIP CENTRE

Crea 'ge
Micro
Fund

& projects were shortlisted for final selection
& ' BHAAEE R EANRBREEMRER

awards granted with 8 from Professional
Stream and 1 from HK YEP
HALHOEEBRIER  EH8ERE [ H%
TEL MEE &8 EFRIETE
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Other Programmes Supported by CCMF

Recently launched in 2012, the Guangdong-Hong Kong ICT Young
Entrepreneur Programme (GD-HK ICT YEP) is a joint programme
developed in co-operation between Cyberport and the Guangdong
Software Industry Association. The GD-HK ICT YEP also aims

to foster partnership and encourage innovation between these
regions’ ICT talents by sponsoring ICT-related start-up projects and
business concepts formulated by GD-HK joint student teams with
great potential. All accepted projects will receive a CCMF grant of
HK$100,000 over a six-month period for the purposes of concept
and prototype development.

CCMF# Bh B H fth 51 &

012F LN BB R EEFAIE
B ESERERA TR LR
TTF BEERMEEFAIXEE EEAE

BICTES REEERE WEESTERED
MfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiAW%EMMﬂ W]
EMSEBREER  UHBE KRB
HoFTHEAETEE AIRNEATEER BEEE
AH+EHBITCCMFER)  BEAIEHE B MG
BHAIER -

GD-HK ICT YEP 2012
BERFEEMKEERAEFE2012

300

programme applications received
aHUEI3001 BEE

24

GD-HK joint teams formed from
144 participants

144F BB L AMAREREETB
CRGIES6

10

grantees awarded

HitH10EEBIRE

Bronze
Award

in HKICT Awards 2013: Best Lifestyle
by CCMF project “Movie Partner”
CCI\/IFI§ B [E&0E ] £E20135 %8
B R BB R R R A R E R 3R

Similar to GD-HK ICT YEP, the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund Young Entrepreneur Programme (SZ-HK CCMF
YEP) is a joint programme co-organized by four parties, namely
Cyberport, the Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Union for Promoting Science & Technology
and PKU-HKUST Shenzhen-Hong Kong Institution. The programme
fosters partnership between ICT talents in the two cities, supporting
innovative start-up projects and innovative business concepts
formulated by SZ-HK joint student teams. All accepted projects will
receive a CCMF grant of HK$100,000 over a six-month period for the
purposes of concept and prototype development.

SZ-HK CCMF YEP 2012
HHEASHERE « REBFTFAEFTE2012

200

programme applications received
& HIKEI20010 R EE

34

SZ-HK joint teams formed from 157 participants
157 B BEE AR RYIEE B ESERTR

10

grantees awarded

H#tH10EEBER

39

B BB EEMXBFAIEE AL (&
BEEIBMEES « RBTFAEFFEIR
BE—EKREER  BHEL FEEMP
RitE IREH XA RES R BESH
i PU A SR A B B ERRBICTES
RUEAERS XHRYEFB2LEEER
M ELZIER - B ABEBER AR
NME AR B HEE RS K+ EEITTCCMFE
B BERAEBEMARBLER-

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13

EEBGEEEEGRAR
3§ 2012/13




5 Centres’ Highlights F{FIB9 A A DN

ENTREPRENEURSHIP CENTRE £ & R hI)

Cyberport Incubation Programme

The Incubation Programme offered by the Entrepreneurship

Centre supports the development of the Hong Kong ICT industry by
providing onsite and offsite incubated start-ups with well-equipped
facilities and services, such as advanced ICT facilities, business
support, mentoring and other related services. On-site incubatees are
eligible for access to rent-free office space. The Centre also serves

as a platform and network to connect the incubatees with industry
players to foster collaboration and synergy in local and global
markets.

As of 31 March 2013, there were 66 start-ups under the Incubation
Programme, with 28 incubatees onsite and 38 incubatees offsite.
Since the programme’s inception in 2005, 567 applications have
been received and a total of 189 companies admitted into the
Incubation Programme, with a 79% rate of successful graduation,
a 67% rate of sustainability in terms of continuous operation after
graduation.

Angel investment funding raised
by Incubatees (as of March 2013)
RIFENRAISERXERERESIEE (HE2013F3A4)

Over

H K$6O million

#8386,0008 % 5T

BB EE B R E

EEHRRTOHETHN [BESEE AR A
BIERBICTITRER - RS KIFHSIE
FEIBE RARETEENRENRE B
FHERICTRE  EEAEB R U g’
EEMEARE MESESRIEEQFE
AUNZEERAEREENER - FORKE
—EEERBEAREREAALINFE F
Bl (e #E A3 [ IR BR T 35 ) FL B 17 4 o

HE2013F3A31H  [BUGEE B2 &
oo AN BEH28MARBEE AR
7] 38M A IEEHBIEE QA - 518l 8 12005
FEEITUR  ARWEIS67DHF Eh189
BIATIRINIA [ EEEtal -t E
7% IR E  M67%2 M AR FEEE KL
WIHERR BELE

Achievements by Incubatees and Alumni

ZEERRAREBRLFAMHAM

e Red Herring 100 Asia Award 2012
— 3D Avatar School & SmoothWeb

e Red Herring 100 Global Award 2012
— 3D Avatar School & SmoothWeb

e 8 companies won 13 awards at HKICT Awards 2013

Incubatees:

— Coherence Web Concepts Limited (Timable)
— Dignity Marketing Communications Limited
— InmoTECH Development Limited

— Rise Impact Limited

Alumni:

—  FifthWisdom Technology Limited
— LinkSolutions Limited

— Nuthon IT Solutions Limited

—  XNT Limited

e Asja Smartphone Apps Contest 2013
— CoachBase

Won 125 industry awards 125 % REEE
Created 111 intellectual properties BlH111E K E#IER
Award Highlights: TEHRFAHE:

2012 Red Herringga )M & R (b ¥ K 48

— 3D Avatar School 2 SmoothWeb

2012 Red Herring® B & s (b 3£ A 28

— 3D Avatar School 2 SmoothWeb

S A A E13E2013F B E ;KB s B i 82
ZEBEARABHE:

— Coherence Web Concepts Limited (Timable)
- EEMBEREIERAA

- BIERIEERBRAA

- IREBARAFA

BENFEIE:

- BEABEERAR

- BEARERRAF

— Nuthon IT Solutions Limited

—  XNT Limited

2013 M B FHEAREARE

— CoachBase

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Entrepreneurship Centre Advisory Group

(ECAG)

{5 3% R # 0 B 5 B (ECAG)

Comprised of industry professionals, academic and NGO leaders, the 12 ZEE O BRI E(ECAG) B EZERE AL
Entrepreneurship Centre Advisory Group (ECAG) is established under &8 & H TH4E4%;  BEAR @ R REA - &
the Entrepreneurship Centre Committee. Integrating the experience AT RIEBTEEMPTAN RERESE

and expertise of ECAG members, the group aims to steer the

EEBETR RGED [ BEBEEETE

development of the Incubation Programme and the CCMF Scheme. FCCMFET E| #Y 85 & - T B3 ECAGRK B 43 Ak /Y

Vetting Teams composed of ECAG members are responsible for

ArEE - T2 B BT EIPTIRB MRS

vetting applications and making recommendations to the Centre as RE YRR LEBREERHN2ME %

to which applicants should be admitted to the programmes. Over
the years, ECAG has made valuable suggestions on the evaluation
methodology, as well as the programmes’” admission criteria and
selection processes, and has contributed to the success of the

FLAR - ECAGTIFLET BB X 05 R &
REFHERFIEL T ZREERE <8
ABTE RAENKIHETERRZ B
REKE 2 —HRERLERFATBHE - R

programmes. A special note of gratitude is owed to the late Mr Suen U EHRTENSEEZ R MERBUARD

Hon Pia, who contributed invaluable professional advice.

As of 31 July 2013, members of the Entrepreneurship Centre

ELE2013F7H31H - e EE RP O EM

Advisory Group (ECAG) are as follows: (ECAG)K E B 15 :
Convenor BEA
1. Mr Alfred WONG HEEELEE

Board Member

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

BRBBAEEERARNEZRKE

Industry Professionals

2. Mr Errol CHAN
Vice President, Public Sector Sales & PMO
Automated Systems (HK) Limited

3. Dr Vincent HO
Executive Director
NEO Media Investment Management Group Ltd

4. Mr Laurie KAN
Principal
ON Capital China

5. Mr Allen LEE
Chief Technology Officer
Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited

6. Dr Johnny NG
Chairman
Goldford Venture

EREA
B 8 3K 5 &
BBRS (BE)ARAAELHEREH

mEgEt
HMREREEEERARNTES

HoREE
BREHEEER

FEREE
BE AR ERERRARRMAE

REEHEEL
mHEEETE
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7. Mr Gabriel PANG BFHREE
Managing Director AMBIZEBER AR ESHLE
Firedog Creative Company Limited

8. Mr Denis TSE B L
Head of Private Markets — Asia BRAEETREEEBRARDIMILEREBE
Lockheed Martin Investment Management Company

9. Mr David TSOI BEMAREE
Principal Consultant EEARERARAREERERD
Techlink System Consultancy Limited

10. Mr Peter YAN EREXE
Executive Director and CEO B RSREBBRATNTES RITHAEH
Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited

11. Mr K.T. YUNG BRREE
Chairman ERHEBEXHEeeR
Hong Kong Game Industry Association

Academic BikxA

12. Prof. Ali BEBA SEDIE: ¢
Director BEBREARBEERLEFE
HKUST Entrepreneurship Center, the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology

13. Prof. Zhi-Qiang LIU 2 RBIT
Professor EBEWMASE B EBERAE
School of Creative Media, City University of Hong Kong

14. Prof. Hugh THOMAS REEHE
Associate Director BEBRXKRBEEMREPOEEE
Center for Entrepreneurship, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong

15. Dr Alwin WONG EEfEL
Director EBEIARBELEERRREE

Institute for Entrepreneurship, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

NGO and Associations

16.

17.

18.

Mr John CHIU, JP
Honorary Chairman
Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association

Mr Jonathan T.0. SHEA
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited

Mr SUEN Hon Pia (passed away in May 2013)
Consultant

EERESRBE
HEFXE
BREGHMEBERELR

HEREE
BEEMBIMERGRARITRAR

BEHFELE (R2013F5A Fit)
FA S
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ICT Entrepreneurship Training

This year, the Entrepreneurship Centre launched a series of special
professional training sessions designed to further its mission in aiding
local ICT start-ups and entrepreneurs.

To aid incubatees in need of
mentorship and investment
capital, the Cyberport
Investment Readiness

Boot Camp 2012 provided
intensive training on business
development and marketing
strategy, while helping
participants prepare to pitch to
angel investors.

On the technological side, Cyberport co-organized with the
Wellington Institute of Technology (WelTec) the Creative Technologies
Workshop 2012, which focused on team building and collaborative
activities in developing and designing with 3D technology, for
experience which can be applied to social networking, mobile
applications and gaming concept design. Cyberport also co-
organized with Premium Agency Asia the Chidori 3D Graphic

Game on Android + Hands-on Lab Workshop, in which participants
collaborated on cost-effective development of 3D mobile games.

ICT{E 2555

FR - EEHERPOSHEARMICTES AR K
ER HETT —RINBEXREIREZ -

R BT ERE RS
BERREBEENE
== VNS - R
BITT [HEEK
A AR EFIE
2012 - ST ¥
R M 45 K B 77 |
RRftEHEI - AR
2mEFMRER
BE -

BB E BB RN BEIET2kE
97 [20128) ERHR TS - B3DRHEH
8% B 2R 5T R AT pA ] 2 7 B X A I E QA
WG E B &R IE AN R A4S - REER
B R R RS P e tboh - BUSE IR
B3 Premium Agency Asia® ## 7 [Chidori 3D
Graphic Game on Android + Hands-on Lab
Workshop J + 821 £ 00 & $L [F 5 35 B K AR 3K
wA3DF R,

Entrepreneur Day Creating IT Legends: Keys to
i Success in Raising Angel Funds

[REITHE  BEXERSRMIE ] EXRE

> )'r:/ CYBERPORT

“Creating IT Legends” Networking Events
and Activities

During the year under review, the Entrepreneurship Centre held a
series of outbound events for start-ups off the Cyberport campus
to encourage networking amongst incubatees, alumni and industry
professionals.

These events included open platform competition organized in
conjunction with Tencent, one of China’s biggest internet portals,
encouraging the creation of innovative new applications.

Cyberport also

held a ceremony
and cocktail
reception for HKICT
Award winners

and Incubation
Programme
graduates, at which
current incubatees,
alumni and guests
gathered to have business networking, sharing their achievements
and successful graduation. As part of the event, titled “Entrepreneur
Day 2012", three incubation graduates including 3D Avatar School,
Alivenotdead.com and MyDress Holdings Limited were invited to
share their success stories and advice on obtaining angel funding,
delivering a well-received seminar titled “Creating IT Legends: Keys
to Success in Raising Angel Funds” to a full house.

(BIEITESF I XREAR
IG5l

FACERERPLOERT —EZHEHINE
B aBESAREHLEEEERREMMER
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OLLABORAT

Mission

Facilitate partnerships and alliances between
Hong Kong’s ICT SMEs and global enterprises to
achieve mutual success.

Provide business support and professional
advice to Hong Kong’s ICT SMEs to enable them
to tap into the overseas and mainland China
markets.

Promote the exchange of technology and

talent between Hong Kong and worldwide ICT
enterprises to fuel the growth of the ICT industry
in Hong Kong.

Establish a channel through which overseas
and PRC ICT enterprises can easily access
Cyberport in Hong Kong.
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Helping Hong Kong ICT

enterprises thrive by connecting
global businesses

BRIRIKEE  BEEEBICTESR
BT

The Collaboration Centre offers a broad range of services to Hong
Kong’s ICT start-ups and SMEs to help them explore, establish a
presence and capture emerging business opportunities in mainland
China and overseas markets.

Among these services is comprehensive business support through
the Shanghai Representative Office, which helps Hong Kong's ICT
SMEs explore collaboration and expansion opportunities in the
Mainland. In addition to providing soft-landing assistance, extensive
facilities for daily operation and business registration support, the
office also offers partnership networks and professional advice on
expanding in mainland China.
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These soft-landing services are also available for overseas markets
through a well-established partnership network that explores
overseas business opportunities, as well as facilitates technical and
talent exchange around the world to bring merits to ICT industry.

Service subscribers gain access to world-class conferences,
seminars, exhibitions and events in Hong Kong and abroad, valuable
platforms at which companies showcase the latest ICT products and
solutions to audiences from all over the world. The Centre and its
representative office serve both inbound and outbound delegations to
these events, acting as a facilitator for Hong Kong’s emergence as a
regional digital hub.

Service Support Platform for Business
Development

Business Support
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Business Connect

Soft-landing in different regions
ABRZE B 77 AT A B M T 35
Business setup advice
KNI EBER
Representative offices

FERVA .35

Meeting facilities
RMHERRE

Alliance Network

Sk 2R 4B 4

Business matching

EHRY

REER

Conferences and seminars

2B E

Outbound delegations

Inbound delegations

BRI

Showcase
EamRT

Showcase & demonstration

Overseas business opportunities
ELINEL
Technical & talent exchange

opportunities
B RAT SR

P o R /R MR 83

Exhibition & promotion

RENEE

Cyberport Startup Alumni Association

BHIREREEZ

Cyberport Startup Alumni Association

Established in January 2013, the Cyberport Startup Alumni
Association (CSAA) focuses on enhancing the bond between
Cyberport and its alumni. The Association endeavours to increase
alumni awareness of, identification with and participation in the
affairs of the digital hub, as well as to provide a common platform for
networking and organization of reunion events and functions. CSAA
will also serve to promote start-up culture and nurture ICT talents via
a number of programmes.

Membership

As of March 2013, there are approximately 200 members in CSAA.
All Cyberport incubatees and Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(CCMF) grantees are eligible for membership in one of the following
membership categories:

—  Graduate incubatees and CCMF grantees: Member

—  Existing incubatees and CCMF grantees: Associate Member
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Mainland China Collaborations

During the year under review, the Centre actively established and
fostered talent exchange and business collaboration in Shanghai and
Guangdong.

Collaborations in Shanghai and Hangzhou

The Centre continued to collaborate with Shanghai’'s Knowledge &
Innovation Community (KIC) in 2012. In August, the Shanghai-HK
Stereoscopic 3D Video Competition was launched to promote the
development and use of high quality stereoscopic 3D technology in
the digital entertainment field. Also in August, the Shanghai-Hong
Kong Hackathon was held in both cities simultaneously. This 24-hour
programme developer competition provided practical experience and
close mentorship to participants who worked in teams to realize their
ideas. In November, a seminar titled “Smart Life in Cloud Computing
Era” took place in Shanghai, and featured numerous high profile
speakers from the industry.

During the school summer holiday period, the Centre also led
delegations from the University of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Cyberport’s participation in the Game
Developers Conference and SmartHK in Hangzhou enhanced the
presence of Hong Kong’s ICT SMEs in the region and facilitated
potential partnership with their Mainland counterparts.
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Collaboration in Guangdong Province

During the Mainland and Hong Kong ICT Industry Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Symposium contributed by Cyberport in July, the
Hong Kong/Guangdong Expert Committee on Cloud Computing
Services and Standards was established to drive the development
and standardization of cloud computing in the two regions.

In September 2012, Cyberport entered into a comprehensive,
cross-border collaboration agreement with Guangdong Software
Industry Association (GDSIA), setting a new milestone with key
focus over the ICT sector under the Framework Agreement in the
National 12th Five-Year Plan period. Under the agreement, the
Centre has collaborated with GDSIA, leveraging Cyberport’s expertise
and extensive network in following areas: business collaboration;
international market promotion and the sharing of marketing
resources; and personnel exchange and development. The two
organizations also exchanged education, training and internship
opportunities and collaborated with relevant tertiary institutes,
research organizations and international partners to forge new
business ventures, opening the door to Mainland and global markets
for regional ICT talents.
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In addition to the Guangdong-HK ICT Young Entrepreneurship
Programme, which aims to nurture entrepreneurship culture among
youngsters, Cyberport and GDSIA co-organized the 1st Guangdong-
Hong Kong Cloud Computing Conference 2012 in December to
promote the development of cloud computing in Guangdong and
Hong Kong through technological and knowledge exchanges.

The Centre’s involvement
in the region also
extended to participation
in the Animation and
Game Show in Dongguan
showcasing Cyberport
incubatees XNT Limited
and Sparkinoo Ltd in
September 2012 and

in the IEEE Asia Pacific
Cloud Computing
Congress 2012 in
November at Shenzhen.
In December, Mr Liu
Zhigeng, Vice Governor of the People’'s Government of Guangdong
Province, led a delegation of 14 representatives to study e-commerce
business in Hong Kong and Macau. The Centre organized a
round-table discussion with seven e-commerce corporations and
organizations in Hong Kong for the delegation. Visits with Cyberport
tenants and a networking luncheon with local industry professionals
and entrepreneurs were also arranged during the visit.
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Overseas Collaborations

Collaboration and alliances with overseas partners were also
accelerated during the year under review, and laid a solid foundation
for Hong Kong ICT enterprises entering the overseas markets.

Collaboration in the USA

In the USA, close partnership was established with Hua Yuan
Science and Technology Association (HYSTA), following their visit
to Cyberport in July and the Cyberport delegation’s visit to the USA
in October 2012. In July 2012, the Centre received an 18-person
delegation led by HYSTA. Representatives of Invest Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC), CWCC (Certified
Public Accountants) and the Law Society of Hong Kong delivered
an information session on Hong Kong as a gateway to developing
Chinese and Asian markets. Delegates were also introduced to
Cyberport’s collaborative platform. In addition to organizing joint
events and sharing resources, Cyberport and HYSTA also exchanged
talent and knowledge via training sessions and mentorship.
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Collaboration in Japan

In Japan, a series of joint events and programmes were held

following a visit to Cyberport by its Osaka partner, Knowledge Capital.

In December 2012, two winning teams of the earlier Steroscopic 3D
Animation Competition were nominated to attend the Knowledge
Capital Award ver.0 Asia Student Creative Exchange in Osaka.
Incubatee XNT Limited was invited to meet Knowledge Capital for
potential business expansion in Osaka and to join their membership
as well.

ICT Delegations

Throughout the review year, as part of the Centre’s mission to
facilitate collaboration between Hong Kong ICT SMEs and their
counterparts in overseas and mainland China, the Centre organized
inbound and outbound delegations. These delegations bolstered
Hong Kong's position as an ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific region while
also strengthened ties to ICT industry professionals in other regions.
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Delegation to Silicon Valley, USA

Together with the HKTDC, Cyberport co-organized the Hong Kong
ICT Mission to Silicon Valley on 8-13 October 2012, recruiting

46 delegates from 26 companies in Hong Kong, Guangdong and
Shanghai. Technical exchange and networking activities included
seminars, business matching, corporate visits, angel pitching and
solution showcase, which altogether involved 400 ICT professionals
from the USA. As a result of “the Mission”, which aimed to foster
technical exchange and explore collaborations at multiple levels,
67 business leads were generated.
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Delegation to Japan

In May 2012, the Centre recruited 13 Hong Kong ICT professionals
to join the “Think Global, Think Hong Kong” delegation to Tokyo

and Osaka in Japan. Aimed at promoting Hong Kong as a platform
for Japanese ICT corporations to develop business overseas and in

mainland China, the event was also invaluable in allowing Hong Kong

ICT entrepreneurs to explore business opportunities and potential
collaboration with the 126-person HKTDC delegation and their ICT
counterparts in Japan.
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Delegation to Shanghai

The Entrepreneurship Summer Programme was held for students of
the University of Hong Kong (HKU) and the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (PolyU) in July and August of 2012 respectively. The
delegations visited Cyberport Shanghai Representative Office, the
KIC and Shanghai Cloud Computing Creative Exhibition Center.

A networking dinner was arranged to allow HKU delegates to

mingle with the Cyberport
Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT
Internship Programme’s
student interns, who
were working in Shanghai y
during the period. Another . TR it
networking dinner was i \ ‘II Eh A
also arranged with

PolyU delegates and KIC
representatives.

~ i

Delegation to Beijing

In June 2012, Cyberport returned to Beijing for the second
consecutive year as a supporting organization in the 16th
International Soft China, where the Centre led 34 delegates from
partner companies to join the 95-member Hong Kong delegation.
Delegates met major industry players and government officials
at meetings and networking sessions, and earned first-hand
experience in the latest developments in cloud computing and
software in the Mainland. Together with Hong Kong Software
Industry Association, Cyberport set up the Hong Kong Pavilion
where 25 Hong Kong ICT entrepreneurs and partners (15
contributed by Cyberport) showcased their remarkable solutions
and products in cloud computing, digital entertainment and
infotainment.
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Delegation from Canada

The Consulate General of Canada led 23 Canadian delegates to visit
the HKTDC International ICT Expo on 16 April 2012. A networking
luncheon was also arranged where the Chief Operating Officer of
Cyberport delivered opening remarks and introduced the ICT hub’s
facilities and services. Representatives of the Communications
Research Centre of Industry Canada and Prompt Quebec presented
Canadian ICT trends and the green ICT initiative respectively.
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Mission

Keep ICT professionals and practitioners at
the forefront of industry development through
a wide array of knowledge-based ICT events
inside and outside Cyberport

Engage students and young people with a full
range of knowledge sharing programmes and a
variety of ICT events that inspire them to pursue
a future in the ICT industry

Drive public awareness of and participation
in ICT through Cyberport tours and initiatives
related to ICT adoption and digital inclusion

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13
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Nurturing local talent

by sharing ICT knowledge and skills
SRR > P ER M NFEARMICTAZ

The Knowledge Centre was established to further Cyberport’s mission
of driving knowledge-based programmes with the goal of helping
to transform Hong Kong into an inclusive knowledge-based digital
economy. The Centre invests in local talent by building up their ICT
knowledge through the organization of world-class conferences,
inspirational training sessions and competitions, while attracting
the interest and participation of young people in the ICT field. The
Centre also supports and sponsors various initiatives to facilitate
ICT adoption in Hong Kong. During the review period, the Centre
organized 90 knowledge sharing and ICT events, attracting 13,600
attendees.
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For ICT Industry & Professionals

To help ICT professionals stay abreast of the latest trends and
developments in the field, the Centre has organized a wide variety of
training sessions, workshops, seminars and conferences. Mentoring
is available for ICT start-ups, along with soft-skill training in areas
such as management skills and sharing sessions with venture
capitalists, to help entrepreneurs hone the skills necessary to develop
their businesses to their full potential.

During the review period, a total of 25 ICT-related conferences

and events were held at Cyberport, attracting over 7,200 industry
professionals and experts and providing a valuable platform for

the sharing of ideas and experiences. The Centre also partnered
with over 30 industry associations, government bodies, academic
institutions and commercial firms during this period. These events
and partnerships served as a valuable support for the local ICT
industry and promotion of collaboration among industry practitioners
in Hong Kong.
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ICT-related conferences and events
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ﬁ 7, ZOO{LiJl —4—7_1_;‘_5/

In addition, the Centre organized and supported 65 knowledge
transfer and training sessions, providing updates on recent
technological trends and developments, and the latest information
on hot topics such as cloud computing, Internet Protocol Version

6 (IPv6), mobile applications, 3D animation and stereoscopic

3D technologies, digital gaming, e-learning technology, and project
management skills. These sessions attracted over 6,300 local ICT
practitioners and helped infuse the local IT industry with a fresh flood
of bright and brilliant ICT talents.

ICT Knowledge Sharing and Training Sessions

ICTRN: 5 = S FI SRR 12

65

knowledge sharing and training sessions
651E FNE 0 = B FI ARERAZ

Over

6,300

ICT practitioners attended
HBi186,3001ICTItXE 2 H

Cyberport Speaker Series: “Cloud without Border —

Meet the Best Cloud Influencers from Silicon Valley”

Renowned experts from the United States, including RightVentures,
Engine Yard, RightScale and Equinix, shared tips and tools to help
participants find the best business opportunities in this dynamic
cloud-based industry.
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Cyberport Speaker Series: “The Cloud is Open”

Mr Lew Moorman, President of Rackspace US, Inc., shared with the
audience the company’s vision on the open cloud model, the need

to set open cloud industry standards, global trends in open cloud
adoption as well as OpenStack, an open source cloud computing
platform that meets the needs of public and private clouds regardless
of size by being simple to implement and massively scalable.

J* cracrrort @rackspace

Cyberport Spaer Series

heEsz
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World IPv6 Launch x IPv6 in Action x IPv6World:
Asia

This seminar was organized by Internet Society Hong Kong after the
success of last year’s “Kickstart IPv6!” seminar held in June 2011,
an event to promote the adoption of Internet Protocol Version 6
(IPv6). Notable speakers from the Asia-Pacific region and China were
invited to share their experiences in IPv6 deployment and discuss
the importance of IPv6 to the ongoing growth and development of the

Internet as a platform for innovation and economic opportunity.
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Asia Smartphone Apps Summit cum Award
Ceremony

The Asia Smartphone Apps Contest drew over 200 entries submitted
by eight Asian countries and regions. Nine outstanding finalists were
selected from the categories of advertising and marketing, games
and edutainment, and creative lifestyle. Winners were announced
during the Asia Smartphone Apps Summit and finalists were given
the chance to showcase their outstanding apps.

P Asia Smartphone Apps C

Asia Smartphone Apps Summit cum Award Ceret !
7 March 2013

DNSSEC.Asia Summit 2012

Organized by Internet Society Hong Kong, Cyberport, Internet
Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers (ICANN) and
Network Startup Resource Center (NSRC), this summit was the
largest DNS Security Extensions (DNSSEC) event ever held in Hong
Kong regarding the security of certain kinds of information provided
by the Domain Name System (DNS) as used on IP networks.

The summit, designed for executives, managers and engineers,
discussed how best to safeguard

the Internet for the exchange of
information at all domain levels.
International experts, including Phil
Regnauld and Hervey Allen from

the NSRC, Warren Kwok from the
Professional Information Security
Association and Richard Lamb at
ICANN, delivered insightful speeches
to the participants.
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PMI HK Asia Pacific Project Management
Congress 2012

This congress was organized by the Hong Kong Chapter of the
Project Management Institute, under the theme “Maximizing
Business Benefits in a Dynamic & Changing Environment”. It
provided an opportunity to network and share, as well as to learn
from industry experts who discussed the value of leveraging project
management as a core competency and shared insights into the
successful application of Project Management (PM) concepts,
methodologies and techniques. Relevant case studies were offered
on enhancing business performance under the current fluctuating
and “risky” global environment.
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Games for Change Meetup

Organized by Cyberport, this event was held to focus on gaming’s
potential to transcend entertainment and affect greater social
change. The gathering served as a casual networking opportunity
for NGOs and professionals in the digital game and multimedia
industries, with two prior winners of the Asia Pacific ICT Awards
invited to speak. Dr Raymond Tong, Associate Professor in
Biomedical Engineering at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
discussed his award-winning KinelLabs
project to aid elderly stroke patients

in recovering their motor skills through
3D virtual games. Mr Andrew Pang,
Managing Director of Leovation Limited,
discussed the application of advanced
motion sensing and augmented reality
technologies in connecting people, play
and healthcare.
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For Youth & Students

The Centre’s goal of nurturing IT talent includes youth-based
programmes to educate students in the fundamentals necessary

for a future career in the ICT field and help recent graduates get
their start in the industry. The Centre helped a number of university
students and graduates gain valuable job experience and hands-on
training through ten internship placements filled through the eHealth
Record Internship Pilot Programme, and 20 placements overseas
through the Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship Programme 2012.

To inspire innovation in the next generation and pave the way for
them to enter the ICT profession, the Centre has organized a number
of competitions for young people. During the year in review, these
competitions attracted more than 1,200 participants. Territory-wide
competitions and international contests include the Hong Kong
Youth 3D Animation Competition 2012, a series of competitions
under the Hong Kong Joint School Electronics and Computer Society,
Mini Underwater Robot Fun Day 2012, Hong Kong International
Science Fair 2012 and InfoMatrix Hong Kong 2013. Many achieved
success even further afield, such as the 2011 Hong Kong Youth

3D Animation Competition winner, which won Third Prize in the IT
Challenge 2012 in Melbourne, Australia, in July 2012.

eHealth Record Internship Pilot Programme 2012

With funding from the Hospital Authority, Cyberport launched the
eHealth Record (eHR) Internship Pilot Programme. The goal of the
programme was to provide practical
experience for fresh graduates in
healthcare-related or IT disciplines,
training in the deployment of electronic
medical record and electronic patient
record systems, and experience in eHR-
related activities that can enhance health
informatics capacity in Hong Kong. The
programme offered a sponsored six-
month placement.

During the pilot programme, ten placements were offered in different
organizations, including Axiom Science Corporation Limited, Caritas
Information Technology Advancement Centre, Joy Aether Limited,
Mobigator Technology Group Ltd, St Teresa’s Hospital, and the
Altrinion Group Limited.
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Hong Kong-Shanghai ICT Internship Programme
2012

From June to August 2012, Cyberport partnered with established
ICT companies to offer internships in their Shanghai offices to
qualifying students from Hong Kong. Interns received mentorship,
on-the-job training and evaluation of their performance, as well as
the opportunity to build friendships and network with an eye towards
future career development.

Participants in 2012 included 20 students from five major
universities, including the University of Hong Kong, Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, City University of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. They were placed in internships with
companies such as Cisco System, Concept Art House, EMC, IBM,
Microsoft and Shui On Land.
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School-Company-Parent Programme

Created by the Young Entrepreneurs Development Council, the
School-Company-Parent (SCP) Programme nurtures entrepreneurial
spirit in students and gives them positive momentum towards future
career development. Through the programme, the Centre has
introduced students at its partner school, the Lingnan Dr Chung
Wing Kwong Memorial Secondary School, to the potential of a career
in the ICT sector.

Six consecutive workshops were held during the programme, each
with a different theme. Students received valuable experience in
career-building activities, such as classroom games, mock interviews
and trade booth creation, as well as advice from professionals on
career research, planning and development, and a learning tour

at Cyberport. A sharing session with a local entrepreneur and
Cyberport incubatee also offered valuable first-hand insight into ICT
entrepreneurship in Hong Kong.

For its participation in the SCP Programme, Cyberport received “Best
Performance of School-Company Partnership 2011-12" and “Great
Entrepreneurs Spirit” awards.

ER KR ETE

(B R B A EFLERERBAIN
EEERSENDERS BREABAEE
BRITFER-PLBEBLREMNE @
AESREFBAABTLSTENREN
BTHRICTERBROHE -

RTERSZRBBIS R hOHETRE
TRTENTIEY ARBREREEE R
B AR RIEE A ESBENENEE
TEFBEXRALRRABED ZWAEETE
REXLREESERME - LI B2
ERERG2EEEE QBUISERXEER
AETTD RN - THRABICTRE KM AIZ

g

HEBRELE (BREEAE ] 44
[2011E2012FF E R EERINHE] & [BF
ERBEE| - BHEITETE-

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13

EEBGEEEEGRAR
3§ 2012/13



68

5 Centres’ Highlights F{FIHA A DI

KNOWLEDGE CENTRE R K A 7 2R

Support to the Year-long Campaign of Hong Kong
Joint School Electronics and Computer Society

Cyberport partnered with the Hong Kong Joint School Electronics
and Computer Society (JSECS) to co-organize a campaign to promote
ICT awareness among students and young people. The campaign
included workshops, seminars, the Hong Kong Outstanding IT
School Award 2012 (HKOITSA), and the 23 Hong Kong Joint
School Electronics and Computer Exhibition, a two-day exhibition
from 8 to 9 August 2012, showcasing shortlisted entries from the
HKOITSA. The judging panel and the public were invited to visit
and cast votes in support of innovative entries selected from more
than 300 submissions from secondary school students. These
creative entries included an image reader for the visually impaired,
a centralized electronic bill management platform, and washroom
vacancy indicator. Cyberport later extended the showing to its
Exhibition Gallery in September, with all finalists on display.

Other events held during the year-long campaign included a sharing
session for the Joint School Short Film Exchange Programme and the
Inter-School Information Technology Quiz 2012 Final.
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Hong Kong Youth 3D Animation Competition
2012

Now in its fifth year, the Hong Kong Youth 3D Animation
Competition’s 2012 theme was “My Neighbourhood”. The
competition featured a wide range of enrichment activities and
support for participants, including local author and illustrator Jeffrey
Lau’s seminar “How to Make a Story Board” on 7 July 2012, a
training workshop on 3D software, and knowledge sharing with

an industry professional. The Centre also provided 3D rendering
services via the Cyberport cloud platform, solving the issue of long
rendering time and allowing contestants to create with greater
efficiency and higher quality.

Education 2.9 Conference: “Next Step in
e-Learning Revolution”

Revolutionary developments in the ICT industry have brought

about a fundamental and major shift in the field of education. Held
in February 2013, this
conference focused on
the development and
trends in e-Learning, and
attracted 250 participants
including teachers,
students, parents, ICT
industry professionals and
e-Learning practitioners.
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Hong Kong International Science Fair 2012

This international science project competition aims to bring the
world’s best science students together and to promote intercultural
dialogue and cooperation through the involvement of students

and teachers from many different countries. With the theme “Be
Innovative, Be Energetic”, the two-day fair brought 58 student teams
from 22 countries to Cyberport.

Cyberport Robotics Workshop

In summer of 2012, over 200 students were divided into groups
and received hands-on training in assembling their own robot sets.
The event aimed to cultivate youth’s creativity in learning about the
mechanics in robotics and its applications.
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For The General Public

Qver the years, the Centre has joined hands with numerous
organizations to support initiatives that bridge society’s digital divide
and pave the way for all citizens to enjoy the advantages offered by
technology, as well as helping provide NGOs with the technological
resources required to assist groups in need. In one such effort,

the Centre improved Cyberport’s corporate website in terms of
accessibility, earning the Internet Professional Association’s Web
Care Jade Award in response. These efforts taken together have
granted greater ICT access to persons with disabilities, helping them
better integrate into Hong Kong's information society.

As part of its mission to move Hong Kong forward as a
knowledge-based and digital-inclusive society, Cyberport welcomes
visitors from all communities and all walks of life, from overseas
ICT delegations to local senior citizen groups and, of course, the
fresh-faced young people who will be the next generation in ICT
talent. To meet these intertwined goals, the Centre hosts both
occasions for ICT professionals to collaborate and exchange
knowledge, and programmes designed to strengthen the ties
between the public and the digital community.

During the review period, the Centre arranged over 280 visits,
reaching over 6,700 visitors from different communities, educational
institutions and countries/regions.
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Delivering cutting-edge
technology to fuel the growth
of the ICT industry
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Mission

o
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Bring cutting-edge industry tools and knowledge 1SR RRIFHATERRFDSIAEE  HRAZIRILH
to Hong Kong in order to develop a diversified RBNR BRI EREESTILBER -

technology-oriented local industry with a global

outlook and network. BICTERRNEHRIREERMN\TRHELEN
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Provide state-of-the-art hardware and software
facilities to ICT and digital entertainment
practitioners.

The Technology Centre is dedicated to bringing cutting-edge industry
tools and knowledge to Hong Kong in order to develop a diversified
technology-oriented local industry with a global outlook and network.
Since its inception in 2003, the Technology Centre (formerly the
Digital Media Centre) has supported local businesses through

the investment of high-end production equipment, as well as the
production of videos, films, animations and game content for online
platforms.

The Centre is especially invested in its role in the adoption of state-
of-the-art technology for cloud computing, digital entertainment,
mobility solutions and social media. Due to their rapid ongoing
development, these four fields represent a growing wealth of
opportunities for ICT entrepreneurs.

Technology Initiatives

During the review period, the Centre put forward a number of
initiatives to enhance its offerings to the ICT community in Hong
Kong, focused primarily on the fields of cloud computing and digital
entertainment development.
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Cloud Computing

Cyberport has developed the Cyberport Cloud Computing Trial
Platform since July 2011, offering a scalable and flexible simulation
environment in which ICT professionals could experience and
experiment with cloud technology before adoption. A year later,
Cyberport established the first Hong Kong OpenStack User Group,
and in December 2012 co-hosted with Rackspace a 4-day training
session on the fundamentals of OpenStack cloud technologies,
providing an open platform which is widely adopted by suppliers,
education
organizations, and
business sector and
training opportunities
for ICT professionals
to acquaint
themselves with these
technologies and

to develop and test
scenarios.

The success of these trial platforms has been recognized within

the ICT industry, with 26 companies registered for the Cyberport
Cloud Computing Trial Platform as of March 2013 and coverage of
Cyberport’s innovative approach to cloud technology by Canonical.
In conjunction with Cyberport's membership in the Asia Cloud
Computing Association (ACCA), which examines demand for the
technology among Hong Kong’'s SMEs and consults with developers
and experts internationally, this serves as confirmation that cloud
computing is and will remain an important technological focus for
Cyberport.

Cyberport actively participates in the ACCA’s SMEs working group
to estimate the level of demand for cloud services across the SME
segments of the Hong Kong economy. This allows the digital hub to
focus on the development of the ecosystem of government support,
information and support access, and new technology required for
mass SME adoption of cloud computing.

Considerable effort has been put into driving cloud adoption within
the community. In early 2013, Cyberport participated in a joint
project with the Hong Kong SAR Government to prepare, review,
comment and finalize the Practice Guide for Procuring Cloud
Services. This helps SMEs understand what cloud computing is and
the benefits and risks they may encounter in incorporating cloud
computing into their operations.
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Digital Entertainment

Digital Cinema Exchange (DCX)

Since the launch of Digital Cinema Exchange (DCX) in October 2009,
Cyberport has pursued the expansion of the DCX network and service.
As of March 2013, 118 out of Hong Kong's 182 digital screens are
connected to the DCX network, and the public has enjoyed 21 live
events delivered by DCX. These include Japanese, Korean and local
pop concerts such as Hamasaki Ayumi Countdown Live in December
2012, live local music festivals like the Hong Kong Asian-Pop Music
Festival in March 2013, and live international coverage of 3D soccer
matches like the UEFA Champions League final in May 2012, and
Barclays Premier League from September to December 2012.

In March 2013, Cyberport organized the HK Asian-Pop Music Festival
2013 Business Forum to discuss the business opportunities brought
about by DCX services and successful live events with industry
professionals from Asia's music sector, new media and new distribution
channels. The proven potential of the DCX network to reach the

public in more innovative ways than ever before only encourages the
Centre in its ongoing commitment to expanding this powerful digital
entertainment tool.
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Digital Cinema Exchange (DCX)
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2012 Shanghai-HK Stereoscopic 3D Video Competition

As part of its goal to promote the adoption of stereoscopic 3D (S3D)
imaging technology in film-making, Cyberport co-organized with
Shanghai’s Knowledge and Innovation Community (KIC) the 2012
Shanghai-HK Stereoscopic 3D Video Competition from August 2012
to January 2013. With support from the Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute (ASTRI), the Technology Centre
can take advantage of real-time 2D to 3D technology to encourage
more students to submit their non-3D animation for real time
conversion for review and judging. The Technology Centre also helped
participants hone their skills with the S3D Live Action Production
and Animation Workshop. The best three works were selected from a
total of 33 shortlisted entries by a judging panel consisted of industry
professionals from Hong Kong, Shanghai and Japan.

One team from the same competition of 2011, “SouP”, also received
additional recognition when in December 2012 it was awarded the
Time Special Prize by Time Magazine for “Hawkie & Froggie”, its
entry to the Knowledge Capital Award ver.0 Asia Student Creative
Exchange in Osaka.

Digital Cinema Projector Training

Cyberport also helps coach the cinema technicians to equip with

the best digital cinema projector operation skill with a 4-day Digital
Cinema Projector training course, co-organized with GDC Technology
Limited in September 2012, in order to provide an intensive technical
and hands-on instruction on the operation and maintenance of digital
cinema projectors.
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“The Cutting-edge New Media Technology for
TV and Digital Cinema” Seminar

In March 2013, the Technology Centre organized a seminar
entitled “The Cutting-edge New Media Technology for TV and
Digital Cinema”, promoting new media technology in the digital
entertainment industry.

Mobility Solution

With support from Cyberport, the Hong Kong Wireless Technology
Industry Association (WTIA) frequently organized seminars

and events, including the Safe WiFi Campaign, Mobile Cloud &
Smartphone Forum 2012, and BlackBerry Jam Session, to facilitate
the development of wireless technology in Hong Kong. In 2012,
Cyberport funded the WTIA in setting up a unique must-visit
destination within Cyberport: the Mobility Experience Centre (MEC).
Scheduled to open in April 2013, the Centre will allow local and
overseas visitors to experience innovative mobile applications
hands-on and learn more about current technologies in an
integrated, life-like manner.

Social Media

The Centre also collaborated with universities and research
institutions such as the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology NIE Social Media Lab through trade shows, seminars
and other sales-driven activities to drive the commercialization of
Social Media and CyberPhysical technologies to the event organizers
and content providers through the use of smart phones and tablets.
This represents an important achievement in Cyberport’s mission

to nurture the next generation of ICT talent and encourage the
commercial adoption of new technologies.
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5 Centres’ Highlig

Mission

Develop, manage and maintain the Cyberport
campus and facilities, including the provision
of office space, infrastructure and essential
services designed to meet the specialized
technological needs of ICT companies.

Provide an environment that is inspirational,
creative and conducive to the pursuit of tenants’
individual objectives, and also meets their
concerns regarding safety and sustainability.

Create and nurture a self-sufficient creative
community on the Cyberport campus to serve as
a backbone in Cyberport’s mission of becoming
Asia-Pacific’s leading ICT hub.
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Optimizing
services and
facilities for

an innovative
ICT community

ye ik 5% e b2 AR #5%

FEICTHEEMKTE

The Campus Development Centre is responsible for the
development, management and maintenance of the Cyberport
campus and its facilities. The Centre’s mission is to provide ICT
companies and visitors with a working environment that is conducive
to their needs and their individual objectives. This includes the
leasing of office space designed to meet the technological needs of
ICT businesses, facilities that allow entrepreneurs and executives to
relax, interact and network, and services ranging from basic security
and housekeeping to the organization of events and conferences,
which always meet the most stringent of professional standards.

Great care is taken to ensure that the Centre’s services are safe,
sustainable and environmentally conscious. The Centre has initiated
a wide variety of green reforms to reduce Cyberport’s carbon footprint
and support a better environment for Hong Kong, including waste
recycling, energy efficiency initiatives and green roofing.

The campus also includes The Arcade, Cyberport’s avant-garde
shopping mall and venue for a wide range of ICT and leisure events,
as well as the on-site hotel Le Méridien Cyberport.
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5 Centres’ Highlights F{FIB9Ra AN

CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT CENTRE B[E &2 PN

During the year under review, the Centre successfully improved
areas of the Cyberport campus to provide better service, including
an expansion of Smart-Space and the Cyberport corporate office,
and other renovations throughout the campus. Major constructions
included the Mobility Experience Centre, which showcases advanced
mobile technologies and solutions. Throughout the year, the Centre
also instituted a number of green initiatives designed to maintain a
sustainable campus.

The Cyberport Community

The Cyberport campus is designed to offer an alternative to the
traditional clustered skyscrapers of the business community.
Low-density, low-rise and aesthetically appealing, the campus offers
a relaxing environment that fosters innovation and sparks creativity,
while also offering everything that a digital company could require in
the competitive ICT marketplace, from an interconnected
state-of-the-art broadband network to 100,000 m? Grade A intelligent
offices with cutting-edge IT and telecommunication infrastructure.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Cyberport community
maintained a steady 86% occupancy rate of its lettable office
space. This included 130 companies, comprising 95 commercial
organizations, 6 non-profit organizations, 1 government department
and 28 on-site incubatees.

Over the years, Cyberport has attracted many well-known
international ICT companies such as Microsoft, IBM, CISCO and
so on. As of March 2013, 43% of Cyberport’s 95 office tenants had
non-local origins, with 63% of them establishing their first foothold
in Hong Kong at Cyberport. Of the office tenants, 68% were SMEs.
During the year, Cyberport’s office tenants employed over 5,000
people.
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CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT CENTRE B[E&I3Z PN

Campus Development

Smart-Space 1

Smart-Space enables companies to rent ready-built office units on a
monthly basis for up to 12 months at a comprehensive fixed price.
With 2-5 desks per room, these units are perfectly sized for new
start-ups, companies seeking to expand into the Asian and Chinese
markets, and existing companies seeking to scale their business.

Smart-Space 2

Smart-Space 1 was launched in 2009 to provide overseas companies
and ICT-related technology companies a launching pad to grow or
enter the Asian markets. Smart-Space 2 was under construction
during the review period, a response to overwhelming industry
demand that provides over 971 m? of additional room with three
types of work area: rooms, workstations and flexi-space. It also
provides rest areas, recreational and networking corners. It was
scheduled to launch in June 2013.

Among the wide range of facilities and services provided to users
of Smart-Space are open Wi-Fi and high speed wired Internet
access, IP phones, use of the Cloud Development Platform, and a
complimentary Collaboration Centre service subscription, as well
as access to fitness facilities and corporate rates at Le Méridien
Cyberport.

Campus Enhancements

During the period under review, the Centre has made numerous
upgrades to the campus’ facilities and services in order to provide a
more satisfying experience and environment for Cyberport tenants
and visitors.
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Corporate Office Expansion

To cope with future development, an expansion and refurbishment
of the Cyberport corporate office was carried out from March to
September 2012.
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Connect-Space

Connect-Space, operated by the Entrepreneur Centre, provides an
open-space shared working area free of charge to ICT start-ups
and entrepreneurs in the Cyberport community. The renovation and
furnishing of Connect-Space were carried out during the review
period and completed in December 2012.

Connect-Space
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Sea View Terrace Renovation

The Sea View Terrace at level 3 of The Arcade was transformed into
an outdoor resting area with comfortable seating and a magnificent
view of the South China Sea.

Improved Food & Beverage Services

During the review period, several new food & beverage outlets were
introduced to offer Cyberport community members more dining
choices while on campus. Additional seating was added to the food
court, and existing furniture was replaced with more comfortable and
low maintenance designs to improve the overall dining experience.
Furniture no longer in use was donated to Friends of the Earth

to serve those in need, in line with the Centre’s commitment to
improving the environment and caring for the community.
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Serving the Cyberport Community

The Centre’s goal of cultivating a self-sufficient creative community
requires dedicated attention to the needs and concerns of
Cyberport’s tenants. This dedication ranges from the provision of
basic services such as security, cleaning and maintenance, to the
promotion of sustainability and environmentally friendly initiatives for
the betterment of Hong Kong as a whole.

Cyberport Tenant
Bus Services

In February 2013, bus
services for tenants who
commute to work at @
Cyberport were enhanced

through the launch of a

new route between Cyberport and Mei Foo, and more frequent buses
on existing routes to Sheung Wan, Kowloon Tong and Hang Hau.
These expanded services connecting to major transportation hubs
offer greater convenience to tenants in the planning of their daily
commute.

@TE”HHF'BUS

Campus Activities

The Centre organized 12 events and functions throughout the year
for Cyberport’s tenants, incubatees and Smart-Space users to enjoy,
including yoga classes and Happy Hour gatherings. These activities
created opportunities for connection and networking with industry
players, and encouraged attendees to draw on existing synergies
within this creative digital community.

Green Initiatives on Campus

The Centre is always mindful of Cyberport’s environmental impact,
and has implemented a number of initiatives and programmes

with environmental protection as their goal. These range from
programmes that benefit the campus and environment alike,
including energy efficiency measures and green roofing, to measures
that improve the whole community, such as recycling of a wide array
of waste materials.
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Source Separation of Waste

Source separation of waste has a significant impact

on recycling and has become a major focus in

the Centre’s recent recycling initiatives. Cyberport
joined the Environmental Protection Department’s

Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial
Waste programme, and received the “Class of

Excellence” Wastewi$e Label award in recognition
of its commitment to environmental protection and

waste reduction in December 2012.

Among the waste materials currently recycled by

Cyberport are paper, glass and plastic bottles,
aluminium cans, cooking oil and so on.
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Power Smart Contest

Since 2006, Friends of the Earth
has organized the Power Smart
Contest for those who achieve an
overall reduction of at least 2% in
electricity consumption. During the
year under review, Cyberport was
2nd Runner-up for the Power Smart
Biggest Unit Saver Award (Property
Management) in December

2012, awarded in recognition of

a 1,613,971 kWh reduction in
electricity consumption.
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Indoor Air Quality

The Centre is responsible for maintaining healthy indoor air quality
for the comfort and safety of Cyberport’s tenants and visitors.
Cyberport has been awarded the Indoor Air Quality Certificate
(Excellent Class) every year since 2004 which recognize numerous

efforts to ensure Cyberport’s indoor air quality.

Efficient Indoor Temperatures

The Arcade at Cyberport supported the Energy Saving Charter on
Indoor Temperature Scheme launched by the Hong Kong SAR
Government in June 2012. As part of this public initiative, The
Arcade pledged to save energy by reducing its dependence on air
conditioning and keeping its average indoor temperature between 24

and 26°C during the summer months.
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Quality Water Recognition Scheme for Buildings

A Certificate for Cyberport 1, Cyberport 2, Cyberport 3 (Core A - F),
Cyberport 4 and The Arcade was conferred by the Water Supplies
Department of the Hong Kong SAR Government in 2012.

Community-Building Facilities

The self-sufficiency of the Cyberport community is due in part to

its state-of-the-art facilities, including The Arcade, Le Méridien
Cyberport, The Podium and the campus’ associated conference and
exhibition facilities.

The Arcade

Located in the heart of Cyberport, The Arcade offers the digital
community both a 27,000 m? retail and entertainment complex
and an innovative venue for large-scale conferences, exhibition
and networking events for the ICT sector. Tenants and visitors
enjoy an international mix of fine dining and restaurants, lifestyle
shops, an on-site supermarket and state-of-the-art cinema, as
well as a centralized gathering place equipped with avant-garde
multimedia facilities and open Wi-Fi within the Cyberport campus.
This innovative approach to public spaces integrates nature and
technology with retail, entertainment and interactive educational/
exhibition facilities, offering an example of the potential of a digital
inclusive environment.
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Robocon Hong Kong Contest 2012: university and tertiary students
showcased the robots of their own design and construction at Ocean
View Court.

Weekend Market: offered visitors with unique experience in urban farming
and green family entertainment.
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Le Méridien Cyberport

The hotel Le Méridien Cyberport is a 170-room haven of chic
contemporary design and cutting-edge technology perfectly blended
with upscale amenities. The hotel is proactive in protecting the
environment, and was endorsed by Green Globe Certification in
2012 for advocating sustainability, assisting in saving energy and
water resources, and positively contributing to local communities
and the environment. The hotel is also one of the winners of the
Annual Green Globe Highest Achievement Awards 2012, representing
the top performing tourism and hospitality businesses, with the
highest number of certification criteria under the globally recognized
certification program Green Globe Certification Standard for
Sustainable Tourism, in key regions of the world.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

ERAEBEIE

With a goal of driving Hong Kong’s
ICT development forward, Cyberport
is also committed to making a positive
social impact as a responsible
member of society. During the
review period, Cyberport took an
active role in promoting sustainable
development, backed by a series of
environmental protection initiatives.
We also strived to fulfil our corporate
social responsibility by engaging with
local communities via a variety of
activities, and creating a better work
environment for our staff.
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Care for the Environment

Over the years, Cyberport has been an advocate of environmental
protection, implementing diverse initiatives ranging from energy
efficiency measures to green roofing and recycling of a wide
variety of waste materials, such as paper, glass and plastic bottles,
aluminium cans, and cooking oil in order to minimize carbon
emission. These efforts have won Cyberport numerous awards and
recognitions from the city’s prominent green groups.

BERIE

SEUAR - BBEENIIFHEREREE
BBET - RINGERRE  EESOIRIT
B RE AL T2 bAKE B @ AR 5K Y
BOPBE RREMERARSESEERERS
RRBMNE R BEEXERNZA N
Ffe

91

Serving our Community Bk 7% 41 Bf

Cyberport advocates a positive and healthy lifestyle. During the IS BIREEGERENESTEE TR XK
review period, we organized and supported a wide range of MRERBREIEFETZERARED BIE[EE
community activities and campaigns to contribute to society and SBHEEE2012] » [ LR LE172013] - [E
help people in need. These activities included CyberRun 2012, 5 FERITEN2013 ] ~ [EEFEShow Hand i L»
Walking on Air for Playright 2013, Sharing for a Cause 2013, Show g [P HEZERZ(T2012 MK E R £
Hand for Christmas, Never Give Up Junior 2012 and the Never Give =~ @20122%¥E | Kk [HRaR B FRELE

Up Association 2012 Graduation Ceremony, and the South District FE-TEETeRIEERENE TIEYH]
Community Programme Against Youth Drug Abuse — Parents’ L BREBODEMLE BEZEFTENA

Workshop. TR
Cyberport has been awarded ﬁ*J:I Iia,‘sg.z BB EE-—FESETS
The Hong Kong Caring Company \ TR g ® hHEe BAREE] S5
Logo by The Hong Kong Council Carlﬂgcompan 201012 ZERMARMTRELNE
of Social Service for three Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service J,%EJ( °

. . . FertEhsksiess
consecutive years, in recognition
of our commitment to the

community.

CyberRun 2012 BERETEHIEH2012

CyberRun is an annual event aimed at promoting a healthy living BF-—EMNIREELENE] B LSRN
through running and walking, as well as raising funds for the Hong HRIT MAREFREEGHALE F
Kong Society for Rehabilitation (HKSR). Donations from the event RKAEAERSRTIRBEAKNERLESES
have helped to support rehabilitation and consultation services fRiGEREE BELZREALTRRESE
for people with disabilities and children in mainland China, and to BYMERIREZERE REBHER
develop a long-term community-based rehabilitation programme. VAT 8 A 2R MY 18 B AR 7% o

The 9th CyberRun was held successfully at Cyberport on FOE [MEREELEIGE] 22012411411

11 November 2012. Nearly 1,000 citizens participated in the event, AREEEEMET EBHEESETED
including 306 runners and 540 walkers. Also among them were 141  R£0- Edh A 1HE HH3067 18 F£LH -

volunteers who helped to make this charitable activity a success. The — M#7TE B BIB540& @72 s HHEE
BOATEBREIEET - AGHERFS43
BILEMN e

event has raised $843,000.
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Walking on Air for Playright 2013

Walking on Air for Playright 2013 was held at Cyberport on 17 March
2013. The annual event is organized by Playright to raise funds for

ill children and to teach compassion by familiarizing children with
the medical consultation process. During the event, participating
children were encouraged to bring along their teddies or favourite
toys and experience hospitalization, including admission, diagnosis
and discharge. It was a lively way to nurture love and sympathy
through real-world experience.
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Sharing for a Cause 2013

The Kids4Kids" annual project Sharing for a Cause is 100% student-
led and executed. It features a new theme each year, urging the
public to donate spare goods for children in need. In March 2013,
Cyberport served as one of the supporting organizations of Sharing
for a Cause 2013, providing a venue to collect sports-related goods.
Through support of this project, Cyberport hoped not only to spread
a green message, but also to raise awareness and compassion for
underprivileged children.
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Donation Activities

For years, Cyberport and members of the digital community have
responded passionately to the Hong Kong Red Cross’ call to give
blood. Since 2005, the Red Cross has set up a temporary donation
centre at Cyberport every year to collect blood, and the community’s
response has clearly demonstrated its love and goodwill towards the
city.

Show Hand for Christmas

Cyberport takes pride in
cultivating positivity in
society. In collaboration
with Praisage, a
Cyberport incubatee, the
digital hub hosted Show
Hand for Christmas
between 18 and 21
December 2012, in
hopes of promoting the
power of appreciation and praise, and helping to build a happier
community. The Arcade customers could leave heartfelt praise

on the big message board at the Exhibition Gallery, and receive a
Praisage hand wax for free.

Cyberport Internship

The internship programme, which nurtures young people’s skills
and interests to develop the generation of ICT talents, experienced
its largest intake of interns in Cyberport’s history during the review
year. Five interns were admitted to the scheme and assigned to the
Finance and Accounting Department, Marketing Department, the
Technology Centre and the Entrepreneurship Centre. The internship
offered the students hands-on work experience as well as an insight
into the ICT industry.
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Caring for our Staff

We value our staff as our most important resource and invest in on-
going training and development in order to help them realize their
full potential. Through internal and external training courses we help
our staff hone their technical skills and managerial talents, refine
their language skills and stay up-to-date on compliance knowledge.
We also encourage our staff to take the initiative in steering their
own development and achieving their career aspirations within

the organization. As a result, an average of 3.5 training days per
employee was offered to our staff during the review period.

Competitive remuneration and benefits packages well aligned with
the local market demonstrate that we also value our employees’ well-
being and strive to ensure a happy, healthy work-life balance. For
example, between October 2012 and February 2013, we organized
“Healthy Eating Weeks” and provided healthy fruits to our staff. We
also provide employees with fully sponsored gym membership at the
fitness centre at Le Méridien Cyberport. To further encourage all staff
members to get the right balance of family and work, we introduced
paternity leave for male staff in January 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (“Cyberport”),
being a private limited company
incorporated under the Companies
Ordinance, is one of the three private
and wholly-owned companies

set up by the Government of

the HKSAR under the Financial
Secretary Incorporated to oversee
the development, operation and
management of the Cyberport
Project.
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Our Commitment

Cyberport is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. We believe that good corporate governance provides
the foundation for good corporate performance and is essential to
accomplishing our public missions, meeting the expectations of our
stakeholders and attaining long-term and sustainable growth. We
have therefore adopted accountability, transparency, fairness and
ethics as the cornerstones of our corporate governance framework.
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Corporate Governance Structure

SHAREHOLDER

(HKSAR Government)
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The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (“Board”) governs and leads the Company in a
responsible and effective manner. It establishes the strategic direction
of the Company and monitors its performance. The Company has an
effective Board which acts collectively to set the corporate strategies
and approve operating plans proposed by Management.

The Board has an overall responsibility for the leadership, control
and performance of the Company and each Board Member has a
duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members, the
Board assumes the responsibility of ensuring that each Board
Member has spent sufficient time to attend to the affairs of the
Company.
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Board Composition

As of 31 March 2013, the Board consisted of 13 Non-Executive
Board Members (including 2 Government directors and 11 non-
Government directors). Non-executive Members bring an external
perspective, constructively challenge and advise on proposals

on strategy, and monitor the performance of Management. This
structure effectively ensures that the Board would comprise
independent members and is conducive to maintaining an
independent and objective Board decision-making process.

All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders without
receiving any honorarium for a specific term and can be
re-appointed upon expiry of their terms of office.

Board Members come from varied but relevant backgrounds

with diverse skills and experience. While 2 of them are from the
government, 11 of them come from various business fields, including
IT, finance, commercial, legal and accounting. Biographical details
of the Board Members are set out in the section titled “Board of
Directors” on pages 24 to 29.
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*Note: Mr Paul Chow was a director of HKCMCL from June 2003 to March 2007
prior to his current tenure from April 2010.
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Board Diversity

Ensuring there is an appropriate balance of skills, knowledge,
experience, and gender on the Board is an important aspect of

our corporate governance. Our Board Members, with diverse
backgrounds, have both the breadth and depth of relevant
experience to steer and oversee the business of Cyberport to
ensure that value is delivered in a sustainable manner and the
Company’s interest is protected. The current mix of our Board
Members is balanced, and well represented by IT professionals,
business executives, government representatives and other industry
professionals and leaders.

Board Functions

The Board directs the management of the business and affairs of the
Company.

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in

the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of
the Company'’s business to the Executive Committee, and focuses
its attention on matters affecting the Company’s overall strategic
policies, corporate governance and finances. These include financial
statements, significant changes in accounting policy, annual

budget, certain material contracts, strategies for future growth,
major financing arrangements and major investments, corporate
governance functions, risk management strategies and treasury
policies.

The Board is chaired by Mr Paul Chow and provides policy and
strategic guidance to HKCMCL on its business development, as well
as oversight over corporate performance and governance.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) are
distinct and separate. The non-executive Chairman is responsible
for managing the Board and leading the Board in setting the
Company’s overall directions, strategies and policies, as well as
monitoring the performance of the CEO. Apart from making sure that
adequate information about the Company’s business is provided
to the Board on a timely basis, the Chairman provides leadership
for the Board, and ensures views on all principal and appropriate
issues are exchanged by all Board Members in a timely manner,
by encouraging them to make a full and effective contribution to
the discussion. Under the Chairman’s guidance, all decisions have
reflected the consensus of the Board.

The CEO is appointed by the Board as a remunerated full-time
employee of the Company. The roles and responsibilities of the
Chairman of the Board and the CEQO are separate, enhancing
independence and accountability. The CEO is responsible to the
Board for managing the business of the Company.

Board Processes

The Board meets in person regularly, and all Board Members
have full and timely access to relevant information and may take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense, if
necessary, in accordance with the approved procedures.

The draft agenda for regular Board Meetings is prepared by the
Company Secretary and approved by the Chairman of the Board. The
agenda together with Board Papers are sent to all Board Members at
least 5 days before the intended date of the Board Meeting.

The Board Meeting dates for the following year are usually fixed by
the Company Secretary and agreed by the Chairman, before being
communicated to other Board Members in the third quarter of each
year.
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At regular Board Meetings, Management reports to the Board on
business, including the Cyberport operations, and related business,
progress of projects, financial performance, legal issues, corporate
governance, risk management, human resources, sustainability,
corporate responsibility and outlook. Together with the discussions
at Board Meetings, this ensures that Board Members have a general
understanding of the Company’s business and provide information
to enable them to make informed decisions for the benefit of the
Company.

Meeting minutes are sent to Board Members for comment and
record within a reasonable time.

All Board Members have access to the advice and services of

the Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the
correct Board procedures are followed and advises the Board on all
corporate governance matters.

All Board Members are required to act in the best interests of the
Company. Amongst other interests, all Board Members are required
to declare their interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement or
other proposal to be considered by the Board at Board Meetings.

A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal in which he/she has
an interest and which he/she knows is material. For this purpose,
interests of a person who is connected with a Board Member
(including any of his/her associates) are treated as the interests
of the Board Member himself/herself. A Board Member may not
be included in the quorum for such part of a meeting that relates
to a resolution he/she is not allowed to vote on, but he/she shall
be included in the quorum for all other parts of that Meeting. This
reduces potential conflicts which might otherwise arise between
the Company'’s business and an individual Board Member's other
interests or appointments.

Matters to be decided at Board Meetings are decided by a majority
of votes from the Board Members allowed to vote, although the usual
practice is that decisions reflect the consensus of the Board.
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Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 March 2013, 4 Board meetings were held
with an average attendance rate of 75%. Attendance records of
individual Board Member are on pages 116 and 117.

A total of 31 Board papers and 14 sets of written resolutions were
considered and resolved.

Key matters considered/resolved by the Board are:

° Annual Budget

o Business Plan and Financial Plan

° Audited financial statements

° Management accounts and reports

° Appointment of external auditor

° Staff remuneration, pay structure and corporate performance
assessment

° Performance assessment and bonus for Management
o Corporate goals and performance measures
° Memberships of Board Committees

° Internal Control and Risk and Business Continuity
Management
° Information Technology Master Plan

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions with Board
Members without the presence of Management to discuss human
resources matters.

Induction Programme

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Board Member
is given a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction programme.
The programme consists of meeting with the CEO and Management,
briefings on Cyberport operations and major developments, and visits
to Cyberport facilities to enable new Board Members to familiarise
themselves with the business of Cyberport and the Company’s
objectives, strategies, operations and internal controls, as well as the
general and specific duties of directors.

Board Members are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities in managing and monitoring the affairs of the
Company. They should act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.
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All Board Members are also given a Directors’ Handbook on their
appointment, which sets out, amongst other things, directors’ duties,
and code of conduct and the Terms of Reference of the Board
Committees. The Directors’ Handbook is updated from time to time
to reflect developments in those areas.

Board Members are required on their first appointment and as

and when necessary thereafter to declare any interests that are or
may be relevant and material to the business and operations of the
Company. They are also required to inform the Company Secretary
of any changes in their declared interests or any new interests that
may arise. A Register of Directors’ Interests is kept by the Company
Secretary and will be accessible by the Board Members.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Accounts

The Board Members are responsible for preparing the accounts

of the Company. The accounts are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company, and of the Company’s result and cash flows for the year.
In preparing the accounts for the year, the Board Members have
selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, have applied them consistently with previous financial
periods. Judgments and estimates have been made that are prudent
and reasonable.

In support of the above, the accounts presented to the Board have
been reviewed by the Management. For both the annual report and
accounts, Management is responsible for finalising them with the
External Auditor and then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and
requirements, as well as changes in accounting policies adopted
by the Company have been discussed and approved at the Audit
Committee before adoption by the Company.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring
that the preparation of the annual accounts of the Company is in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.
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Code of Conduct

HKCMCL is fully committed to the principle of honesty, integrity and
fair play in the delivery of products and services to the public.

HKCMCL is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(POBO). Accordingly, Board Members are regarded as “public
servants” for the purpose of that ordinance.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management and
operations of the Company. Board Members, both collectively and
individually, are expected to exercise fiduciary duties and duties of
skill, care and diligence to a standard at least equal to those of Hong
Kong law.

Board Members must satisfy the required levels of skill, care

and diligence. Delegating their functions is permissible but does
not absolve them from their responsibilities or from applying the
required levels if they pay attention to the Company’s affairs only at
formal meetings. At a minimum, they must take an active interest
in the Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of the
Company’s business.

Board Members should regularly attend and actively participate at
Board and committee meetings, and prepare for them by reviewing
all materials provided by Management.

Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her ongoing
disclosure obligations (including, without limitation, requirements
to notify changes in personal particulars to the Company Secretary
and/or circumstances that may affect his/her independence, and
to declare interests in contracts or proposed contracts with the
Company) under the Companies Ordinance.
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Board Committees and Panels

Under the Board, there are four standing Committees and one
Panel, namely the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Entrepreneurship Centre Committee
and the Performance Review Panel. Terms of Reference of the
Committees and Panel set out the function, composition of members,
authority, duties, frequency of meeting, and reporting responsibilities
of the Committees. These Committees and Panel are accountable to
the Board for their recommendations and decisions. The Terms of
Reference of Board Committees and Panel are reviewed from time
to time in the light of HKCMCL's evolving operational, business and
development needs.

The meeting processes of Board Committees and Panel follow closely
that of the Board. The interface between the Board and Board
Committees and Panel are:

o All Board Members may attend any Committee and Panel
meetings as observers

° Board Members are free to access the papers of any Committee
and Panel meetings through the Company Secretary

o Full minutes of Committee and Panel meetings are sent to
Board members for information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, their
memberships, principal duties and key matters considered or
resolved in the year.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (“Excom”) is responsible for monitoring the
performance of the Company and ensuring that the Company has
been operating in consistency with the corporate missions and the
annual budget/business plan as approved by the Board.

HWITEARERERARANKE BRA
ARMBESRECEE BB LHAE
HEERE LN FEI RS LR 8l
=3¢

Members’ Profile-Excom SlITZEEEMEE S TRCRIINIZOSRE EkvsKcIi=h)

T Accounting/ Finance Engineering Government
BMRR 5t &/ IR BUS
Membership: Six members BMERBE 6%

Chairman: Mr Paul CHOW Man Yiu
Members: Ms Susie HO Shuk Yee
Mr George HONGCHQY Kwok Lung
Mr LEE Shing See
Mr Alfred WONG Kwok Kuen
Mr Peter YAN King Shun

EFE: BAXBRE
B fAIRRX L
FTERELEE
FAEMLRE
=EELE
ERERE

Meetings: The Excom convened 7 meetings during the year with
an average attendance rate of 74%. A total of 36 Excom
papers were considered or resolved. Attendance records
of individual members are shown on pages 116 and 117.

R WTZEEeRFRARKEARTIXRE
& FHHEXRR74%  HEH3HD
MITZ B G XM - BB M F ROk
HIHNELIIRFELLTE -

Principal duties:

° Exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board
between regular Board meetings

o Serve as a sounding board for the Chairman of the Board in
the leadership and oversight of the business and affairs of the
Company

o Help coordinate the activities among Board Committees

o Oversee the annual Budget

° Decide appropriate action in response to ad-hoc, urgent and

specific issues and any other matters either raised by Excom
members or brought to its attention by the Management

o Monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and the
operations of all business units of the Company

° Plan and allocate resources, human, financial and otherwise,
for the execution and implementation of the approved business
plans and corporate development strategies

Key matters considered/resolved:

o Review of Annual Budget and Mid-Year Forecast

o Review and approval of Company policies

° Review of investment guidelines and investment strategies
o Review of strategic cooperative agreements

° Approval of material tenders and contracts

° Monthly management accounts and report
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”") was established to oversee and review
the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate governance in financial
reporting, internal control, risk management, appointment and
performance of the external auditor and regulatory compliance.

B EEE

u-l—;/\ 2 E’J}ﬂZ_LE El’]xei%’i%‘& u—_TZ’X
ﬁ%m%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁamﬁﬂ i
REARAWERTAZTEREER

(VS oo R ol =A==}l  (as of 31 July 2013) (#ZE201347A31H)

Accounting / Finance Commercial Government Legal

BEt &R/ [EES

Membership: Five members

B e

BEZE 5%

Chairman: Mr George HONGCHOY Kwok Lung
Members: Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi Tak
Mr Herman HU Shao Ming
Mr Douglas SO Cheung Tak
Mr Damian LEE Kwok Hung
(government representative)

TE: EEERLE
B ZERiELL
ABEEASE &
mEBLE
FEMELE (HAFHLK)

ko]
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Meetings: The AC convened 2 meetings during the year with an
average attendance rate of 70%. A total of 7 AC papers
were considered or resolved. Attendance records of
individual members are shown on pages 116 and 117.

g% BEZEeRNFRAXART2RE
& P ERRTI0O%  HBRINE
AFRBEX - BEREMHFERET
HNBLIERFELLTE -

Principal duties:

Review financial statements and accounts

Make recommendations on the appointment of external
auditor, approve its remuneration and terms of engagement
and oversee the Company’s relations with the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk management
system and internal audit function

Report on matters in relation to corporate governance practices

Key matters considered/resolved:

Audited annual financial statements

External auditor’'s Audit Report, objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process

Appointment of external auditor and approval of audit fee and
non-audit services

Annual Corporate Governance, Risk Management and Internal
Control Review

Annual internal audit programme and internal audit reports

Adequacy of resources and effectiveness of the internal audit
function
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) was established to make
recommendations to the Board on organizational structure and
policies on staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline and
dismissal, with reference to the Company’s overall goals and
objectives.

Members’ Profile-RC FiEfiZEESENEE S

HMEZRE
HME BB HK T A MRERAA AN EE
B2 SRR R A MRS E  H

BABTRE HEMREDENBER
EExRRELER-

(as of 31 July 2013) ((Z2013F7H31H)

Commercial Engineering Government IT Legal
(SES I B BRI e
Membership: Five members MBRE 5%
Chairman: Mr LEE Shing See FE FEMRAE
Members: Mr Douglas SO Cheung Tak B8 #EEmEE
Mr Peter YAN King Shun FEELE
Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei Chun ICES R edum
Ms Joey LAM Kam Ping WEBF 2+ (TR
(government representative)
Meetings: The RC convened 4 meetings during the year with an % FTNEZESRTFARBHETINE

average attendance rate of 90%. A total of 9 RC papers
were considered or resolved. Attendance records of
individual members are shown on pages 116 and 117.

& FHHERR0%  HBHIMD F
ME B et - EREMHFERET
HNBLIELFELLTE -

Principal duties:

o Review staffing, remuneration and employment policies and
strategies

° Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including annual
corporate goals and performance measures, grading and pay
structure, variable compensation and retirement schemes

° Review the criteria for assessing employee performance and
make recommendations to the Board

° Review the salary increase and annual performance bonus
for the senior executives and general staff and make
recommendations to the Board

Key matters considered/resolved:

o Pay and grade structure
° Annual review of staff remuneration

o Annual corporate performance assessment and award of
variable compensation for staff

° Staff benefits and retirement benefits
° HR Manual
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Entrepreneurship Centre Committee (ECC)

The Entrepreneurship Centre Committee (“ECC”) was established
to oversee the administration and management of the programmes

implemented by the Entrepreneurship Centre, such as the
Incubation Programme and the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(“CCMF").

Members’ Profile-ECC X2 ERDINEETHRESS

T Commercial

BRRR [EES

Membership: Nine members (including five Board representatives

CEBRAUER
rERERPLEES EI’JWJ_E B2 ﬁl_%Y‘EEJL
RERTOMETHSEAEZTHRNLE
EH S EE S EEE 2 )32
[BUSBEEMAEES] -

(as of 31 July 2013) (#Z%2013%7H31H)

Government

B

BERE: 9% (BRESBEFRNRNLE

and four Management representatives) EREEREK)

Chairman: Mr Alfred WONG Kwok Kuen FE HEELEE
Members (Board Mr Edwin LEE Kan Hing BERRKRKE: ZFRELLE
Representatives): Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz Kit RN Pt
Mr Peter YAN King Shun FEELEE

Mr Damian LEE Kwok Hung TEERE

(government representative) (BFHE)

Members (Management Mr Herman LAM Heung Yeung FEENRRKE: MEBEE
Representatives): Mr Mark O. CLIFT BEREAE
Mr Cavan CHEUNG Sau Shing ok 75 K 58 A

Mr David CHUNG Wai Keung BEREE

Meetings: The ECC convened 5 meetings during the year with
an average attendance rate of 95% for the Board

representatives. A total of 9 ECC papers were considered
or resolved. Attendance records of individual members

are shown on pages 116 and 117.

@ CEBRRPOZEENFAREFT
SRE#H BEERARZFHHFEX
R95% HBFZIMMEEZERFLEE
GX Mo FRE R ECETIHNE
116 #1178 -

Principal duties:

o Oversee the administration and management of the
programmes implemented by the Entrepreneurship Centre

o Advise the Entrepreneurship Centre management on policy
changes due to the changes in macro business environment

° Approve the composition of the Entrepreneurship Centre
Advisory Group (“ECAG”) which comprises venture capitalists,
business executives, ICT industry professionals, academics,
and trade association members

° Approve applications recommended by the vetting committee
for the programmes of the Entrepreneurship Centre

° Monitor and review the progress of the start-up enterprises of
the programmes

o Review and approve the Procedural Guidelines developed by
the Entrepreneurship Centre management for the programmes

Key matters considered/resolved:

o Guangdong — Hong Kong Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
Young Entrepreneur Programme

° Shenzhen — Hong Kong Cyberport Creative Micro Fund Young
Entrepreneur Programme

° Amendments of Terms of Reference of ECC and ECAG

° Amendments of Guidelines of Incubation Programme and
CCMF

° Vetting of Incubation Programme and CCMF applications
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Performance Review Panel

The Performance Review Panel (“PRP”) was established to review
and discuss the performance of the CEO, Chief Operating Officer
(“COQ"), Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), Chief Technology Officer
(“CTQ") and the Company, with reference to the Board’s approved
Key Performance Indicators and objectives.

Members’ Profile- PRP RIRGSIEHEZEERELT =

REWEHZEE

KA FHEBGOR A NRIRERE
ERBANEERRIEERAEE RITRE
B BBRE MR RITEEMA AN
RBEH R R

(as of 31 July 2013) (#ZE2013F7H31H)

Principal duties:

Review the performance of the CEO, COO, CFO, CTO and
the Company, with reference to the Board’s approved Key
Performance Indicators and objectives

Review the Terms of Reference and the effectiveness and
performance of the PRP, and recommend any changes it
considers necessary to the Board

Key matters considered/resolved:

Performance review of the CEO, COO, CFO and CTO and their

variable compensation
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Membership: Five members MBRE 5%
Chairman: Mr Paul CHOW Man Yiu EE AXOREE
Members: Ms Susie HO Shuk Yee KB Rzt

Mr George HONGCHOY Kwok Lung FRELEE

Mr LEE Shing See AL A

Mr Alfred WONG Kwok Kuen =R A
Meetings: The PRP convened 2 meetings during the year with an g# KRR ERZESRTARERAT

average attendance rate of 78%. A total of 3 PRP papers 2REH FHRBEERETS%  HEZ

were considered or resolved. Attendance records of INEBBFTEBEZES - FKE

individual members are shown on pages 116 and 117. R BTSN E116 R 1178 °
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M ERE (20125441
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M EETI NG ATTEN DANCE (1 APRI L 20 1 2 Types of meetings Board Excom AC RC ECC PRP
TO 31 MARCH 2013) HZ201343H31H) i EER WG EH AM SRER RARN
£8g £EE £EE® Bl =%
ZE® Z8®
Types of meetings Board Excom AC RC ECC PRP Board members % % /5 5 B
EHRR EER BiT =&t i B ERBR  RERE
ZE8 E=g ZE® Bl = Winnie J NG in! - - - - -
£E® £E® mEEL L
Board members & % /5 i 8 (Retired from the Board on 4 June 2012)
(20126 A4RRTES)
Paul CHOW 4/4 717 - - - 22 ]
Fre T Gabriel PANG 2/3 - - - 5/5 -
BFREE
Anthony AU 1/1 1/1 - - - - (Appointed as director on 5 June 2012)
ERMtEE (R20126F6 ASHEZ X AER)
(Retired from the Board on 4 June 2012)
(R201266 A40 BTEE) Douglas SO 2 B 2l B B B
BREELE
Rosanna CHOI 2/3 - 2/2 - - - : _ ‘
S E &+ Ellzabeth TSE/imcI;d;ng a:(tendance b%/halternate) 3/4 2/2 - - - 1/1
(Appointed as director on 5 June 2012) WEELL (RREARTESZ HFRE)
(FR20126F6 ACHEZ T BEE) Alfred WONG 3/4 5/6 - - 5/5 1/1
Susie HO (including attendance by alternate) 2/2 4/4 - - - 1/1 RERALE
ARAZT (BREEBEESFZHFERED) WONG Sau Ying 4/4 4/7 - 4/4 _ _
(Appointed as director on 8 October 2012) EHEHEL+
(R2012F10A8HEZEAES)
Peter YAN 4/4 - - 3/4 4/5 -
George HONGCHOY 2/4 217 2/2 - - 1/2 EEE%4
ITEELE
Jeny YEUNG 1/3 - - 3/4 - -
Herman HU 3/4 - 1/2 - - - BEL L+
MBS E (Appointed as director on 5 June 2012)
A -
Daniel LAI (including attendance by alternate) 1/1 1/1 - - - - (R2012F6ASHEEERES)
HEELE (REREEES 2 HRAH) YING Yiu Hong (including attendance by alternate) 0/1 - - - - -
(Appointed as director on 25 July 2012 and EREEYE (BEESTESYHERNY)
resigned from the Board on 8 October 2012) (Resigned from the Board on 25 July 2012)
(R2012F7A2CBEZ T AES - (FA201247 A25H E{IEE)
WH2012F10A8HEHTEE)
LEE Shing See 3/4 5/7 - 4/4 - 172
TR EE
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Meeting Procedures

The Board, Committees and Panel convene meetings on a regular
basis. Special meetings will be held as and when necessary.
Management circulates papers prior to the respective meetings to
provide adequate information for members in a timely manner to
facilitate their deliberation of the issues and decision-making. The
respective Board/Committee/Panel Secretaries record the major
points of discussion, recommendations, decisions and action items
arising from the meetings. Outstanding matters are followed up by
the relevant departments, and progress updates are reported at
subsequent Board/Committee/Panel meetings.

Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company’s CEO, are responsible
for managing the Company’s day-to-day operations and implementing
the strategies and directions determined by the Board. Guidance

on the ethical behavior of the Company has been well defined in

the Company’s Employee Code of Conduct and Business Ethics
(“the Code”). From time to time, the Code will be reviewed and fine-
tuned, covering such issues as prevention of bribery, conflict of
interest, acceptance of gifts and advantages, handling of confidential
information and preservation of secrecy, intellectual property, and
outside business or employment. ICAC is invited to give briefings on
prevention of bribery and conflict of interest to the employees of the
Company on a regular basis. Staff members are also reminded of the
need for compliance with the Code from time to time.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and enhance transparency and accountability.
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External Audit

To ensure the independence and objectivity of the External Auditor,
after conducting a tender for the provision of External Audit service,
the Board appointed KPMG as the Company’s External Auditor to
conduct the audit of its financial statements commencing the year
2012/13.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and shareholder that the annual financial
statements of the Company are fairly stated. The External Auditor
plays an important independent role in expressing an opinion on the
financial statements based on their audit, and meets with the Audit
Committee to discuss the nature and scope of the audit prior to the
commencement of the work if necessary and to report on findings.
The External Auditor also reports internal control recommendations
identified as part of the audit together with management responses,
if any.

Internal Audit

The internal audit is primarily responsible for reviewing the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control procedures and monitoring
compliance with them. The Company has outsourced its internal
audit function to an independent professional advisory firm (Internal
Auditor) to monitor the Company'’s internal governance and provide
a basis for the Board to assess the risk management and internal
control system maintained and operated by Management. The Audit
Committee directly oversees the work performed by the Internal
Auditor. Independent reviews of financial, business and functional
operations and activities have been conducted with a focus on
higher risk areas of the Company. The internal audit plan is reviewed
and agreed to by the Audit Committee in advance. At each Audit
Committee meeting, the Audit Committee reviews the results of

the internal audit and evaluates the impact of the findings and the
proposed management action plans.
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Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology and
Broadcasting Panel of the Legislative Council regarding the Cyberport
Project, including its financial performance.

To enhance transparency, the annual emoluments of the Company’s
five highest paid employees are disclosed under note 8 to the
financial statements on page 148.

With a view to maintaining open and transparent communication
with external stakeholders, the Company continues to connect
with the community by taking advantage of multiple channels and
tools. These include the official website, monthly e-newsletter,
press briefings and interviews, and participation in a variety of local
and overseas exhibitions and conferences. Annual reports and
information on our programmes and offerings are disclosed on our
website for public access.

The attendance of Members at the Board and Committees Meetings
is reported on pages 116 and 117.
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Report of the Directors
EERRS

The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal activities

Details of the principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) are set out in note
1 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013
and the state of the Company’s affairs at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 127 to 164.

Transfer to reserves

Loss attributable to shareholders of HK$134,374,672 (2012:
HK$134,532,727) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the statement of changes in
equity.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Company are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22 to
the financial statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Paul CHOW Man-yiu (Chairman)
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George HONGCHQY Kwok-lung

FEIzE

Herman HU Shao-ming

A5 AR

LEE Shing-see
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Elizabeth TSE Man-yee

218

Douglas SO Cheung-tak

REm

Peter YAN King-shun

ERE

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

=R

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak (appointed on 5 June 2012)

2R (56201256)%55 BEE)

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit (appointed on 5 June 2012)

TFH (201256 AR EZ 1)

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun (appointed on 5 June 2012)

CESZ (56201256)%55 EEE)

HO Shuk-yee (appointed on 8 October 2012)

a5, (20125 10H8REZ )

Edwin LEE Kan-hing (appointed on 5 June 2013)

TR (%2013¢6H5EI BZT)

Anthony AU Wai-hung (retired on 4 June 2012)

& f& (B2012%F6 R4RRE)

Winnie J NG (retired on 4 June 2012)

L (PR2012F6 A4 RE)

YING Yiu-hong (resigned on 25 July 2012)

JE 128 R (F201247 H25H B E)

WONG Sau-ying (retired on 4 June 2013)
|mA R (R2013F6 H4HR(E)

Daniel LAI (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee until resignation

on 25 July 2012; appointed as director on 25 July 2012 and
resigned on 8 October 2012; appointed as alternate director to
HO Shuk-yee on 8 October 2012)

FaHE (AEMRZBESE  N20126F7 H2LA BEE -
FEBEZERES  HEN2012F10A8H B
FIEBEZERMBRECEEES)

Mable CHAN (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee,
_appointed on 25 July 2012)
PREE (HERZBEES R2012F7A25HEZEE)

Cathy CHU Man-ling
KEH
Ophelia TSANG Oi-lin

(alternate\direotor}o YING Yiu-hong, resigned on 19 June 2012)
(BRI BAEES R2012F6H19H#F)
(alternate director to YING Yiu-hong,

appointed on 19 June 2012 and resigned on 25 July 2012)
BEE <rt&£tz*51£§$ R2012%F6 A19H EZ T
2012497 A25 A B (T)

Joey LAM Kam-ping

(alternate director to Daniel LA,

appointed on 25 July 2012 and resigned on 8 October 2012)
R (BHECBEES MN2012F7A25FER T
R2012F 10 A8H Bk )

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of Association for

retirement by rotation, all present directors continue in office.
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Report of the Directors
EERRS

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its immediate holding
company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company, its fellow subsidiaries
or its immediate holding company a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract,
no other contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Auditors

KPMG was appointed as auditors of the Company upon the
retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By order of the board
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIHEIRE

e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
127 to 164, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2013,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZHERE

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2013, and of
its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 September 2013

ZEEREE @

BACREFESMASEMN (FER
FHER] EITE - RFEUERERMET
BREAE LREIRNTES AAEETE
MHERERRE TR T ERE R

BEDS RITIZFF AEEUA B TS5 Rk Pk
THRLRBENNETRE FIEENRESF
BRUR 1 2 B B ) 6 - B 55 5T 44 B O REE =X
54 ER T G E B I IRKR 7B B R AR R /0 [
% o R A% TR - ZHAE B RZ AT
REFERRIAMEEE N A FH RERIBRH
ABMER URFTEENENEF - EBH
WIRERBARMEF OB REERER -
B MERAEESMRASTRRNAE
HEREREFH AR NA RN ARFHER
WREEBEIIHT A

HFIHRE  RPMESHEREETEM
EEMARMNETERIRHER-

==
=5
5

BFIRR ZEVHBHRRORE (FBEMH

FEA) EEMAFHRE EQFARN
2013F3A3IAMEBIR MBI EZ A LEF
EHMEERRERE YERREE (AT
) ZSMmed-

EER g MERAN
PR B AT

EBH R

EATIE10%
AFABSIE

201349 H26H

127

Statement of Comprehensive Income

ZEMNER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & £201343A31H It F &

2013 2012

Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT PBTT
Revenue A 5 405,526,091 386,350,746
Other income H AUz A 5 15,796,254 28,322,561
421,322,345 414,673,307
Building management expenses WESEST 131,267,585 121,889,427
Staff costs 8 TR A 6 92,683,234 86,907,181
Information technology facilities BMBHE R IR E
maintenance fee Z 19,031,834 23,014,667
Government rent and rates b & 2= A 9 12,664,674 10,779,479
Other operating expenses Hih&EES M 10 91,946,799 95,851,643
Operating expenses before KetrEz&EBESH
depreciation 347,594,126 338,442,397
Operating profit before depreciation RT3 & 2 & & )i A 73,728,219 76,230,910
Depreciation e 13 (208,102,891) (210,763,637)
Income tax expense Frisfi i 11 = -
Loss and total comprehensive FENEEREEIRE
income for the year #BEE 12 (134,374,672) (134,532,727)

The notes on pages 131 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.

1312164 B AP RE R A B 5 3R HO A A BP

,f/'\ ®

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13

EHAHEEEEGRAR
3R 2012/13



128 129

Balance Sheet Statement of Changes in Equity
s == -
EER8ER EngasR
As at 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{£201343A31H It F &
2013 2012 Share Capital Accumulated Total
Note HK$ HK$ capital reserve losses equity
B EE BT BT B BAE R R ERA%
Non-current assets ERBEE HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
Property, plant and equipment VERE: P 13 3,287,995,028 3,447,980,108 s T T s
Deferred rental receivable RS 8,148,959 6,250,265 i
Held-to-maturity investments EAEE RS 14 247,920,013 075,283,501 Balance at 1 April 2011 W201154B1 &% 2 5261848390 (1,529,455477) 3,732,392,915
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 g’gsf“}'??‘}'f)?q N 7%]2279;5717?"7879{‘ - Change in equity for the year: FNEGEE:
Current assets EEEE Loss and total comprehensive income FREEREERE
Inventories, at cost FEKA 533,634 533,768 for the year B - - (134532,727)  (134532,727)
Trade and other receivables JFEE LS B R R L At B L 3R 15 24,631,037 24,763,670 :
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JIE U [R) 2 BB 1 B 3R 16 3,070,876 1,938,579 Balance at 31 March 2012 and 1201243A318 &
Held-to-maturity investments BAEZIHARE 14 180,118,919 179,713,926 1 April 2012 2012%4R1 B & 2 5261848390 (1,663,988,204)  3,597,:860,188
Cash and bank balances RBe LSBT 17 605,609,925 547,917,578
813,964,391 754,867,521 Changes in equity for the year: ENEREE:
—————— b L LIt 4 RELEEELEELEE Transfer from development maintenance REREEECERZE
Current liabilties A s fund to capital reserve (note 19) BAEE (H3E19) - 1289051 - 1289051
Trade and other payablgs ﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&, ‘rlﬂﬁ’ffﬂﬁm B 18 76,500,547 66,979,642 Loss and total comprehensive incorne FRERE AT
Rental and other deposits HEEZeREMES 62,323,441 57,501,078 ot the vear . ) C MIE) (M6
Amount due to immediate FEREEERAT y wE 374, 374,
holding company IR 16 254,210,829 254,278,206 Balance at 31 March 2013 #201353A31R&& 2 5274743441 (1,798362,876) 3,476,380,567
393,034,817 378,758,926
Net current assets RBEEF 420,929,574 376,108,595 . ) e N p N
netcumentassets o MAREEA ® 40929574 376108595 The notes on pages 131 to 164 form part of these financial F131E164BMKMFTE AT KwE 2 — =B
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 3,964,993,574 4,105,622,489 statements. o
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE
Development maintenance fund BRGEEES 19 438,104,949 451,000,000
Facilities maintenance fund RIEEEES 20 50,000,000 50,000,000
Deferred income BT Wz 21 508,058 6,762,301
488,613,007 507,762,301
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,476,380,567 3,597,860,188
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRHE
Share capital [ 22 2 2
Capital reserve ERE 5,274,743,441 5,261,848,390
Accumulated losses 2B (1,798,362,876)  (1,663,988,204)
TOTAL EQUITY BB 3,476,380,567 3,597,860,188

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26~ 7201349 A26H & % = B #% ff I 7F 7 3%

September 2013. i o
Directors Directors
EF EFE
The notes on pages 131 to 164 form part of these financial $F131Z=1648 Wi st B A R K 2 — 2B
statements. e
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited BERHBEEEARAA
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Statement of Cash Flows

RERE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & 220133 A31H It F &

2013 2012

Note HK$ HK$
= BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities BREeFHZRETE
Net cash generated from operations KEERMEL RS 558 23 63,527,007 73,944,113
Cash flows from investing activites =~ ®&E®zH4mE
Purchase of property, BAME HRR
plant and equipment B (37,499,784) (25,147 879)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BB
property, plant and equipment FTS A 6,786 -
Purchase of held-to-maturity BABEZIHA
investments ®E (166,990,775) (258,287,562)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BOREEHA
investments ®E 185,500,000 304,000,000
Decrease in designated bank balance BERITHE R = 142,948,186
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits A =B A28 H T H
longer than three months TFRZEL,/ (38m) 76,244,395 (282,092,022)
Interest income from held-to-maturity BREFEETEA
investments received HEFE 13,488,102 15,341,087
Interest income on designated bank BT IRITEH
balance received FE = 1,216,243
Interest income on bank BUERTTF R
deposits received FE 5,179,110 1,243,320
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREFRHZRERN
investing activities (FH) 38 75,927,834 (100,778,627)
Cash flows from financing activities MHEHZRETE
Decrease in amount due to immediate e BB IR A A
holding company HIEZRD (67,377) (17,844)
Government grants and sponsorship (BRE) BRI
(refunded)/received, net e hEFH 21 (5,450,722) 8,431,966
Payment on settlement of REREEERES Y
development maintenance fund E 19 - (49,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities MBESZRERLTE (5,518,099) (40,585,878)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBR&SHEHER
cash equivalents wm, (GRY) B8R 133,936,742 (67,420,392)
Cash and cash equivalents at the EVNZREREEEE
beginning of the year HE 146,878,598 214,298,990
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBEER
at the end of the year R&%EEH 17 280,815,340 146,878,598

The notes on pages 131 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

General information

The principal activity of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (the “Company”) is to support and promote
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong
through the creation of a strategic cluster of information and
communications technology (“ICT”) based companies as well
as encouraging the building of a critical mass of professional
talent in the territory. With a vision to establish itself as a
leading ICT hub in the Asia-Pacific region, Cyberport is
committed to facilitating the local economy by nurturing ICT
industry start-ups and entrepreneurs, driving collaboration
to pool resources and create business opportunities, and
accelerating ICT adoption through strategic initiatives and
partnerships.

In order to fulfill the vision, the Company established five
centres namely “Technology Centre”, “Entrepreneurship
Centre”, “Collaboration Centre”, “Knowledge Centre” and
“Campus Development Centre” (the five centres collaterally

named “Operating Centres”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Units 1102-
1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) via Financial
Secretary Incorporated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by
the board of directors on 26 September 2013.

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS IR RMIEE

(@)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”). The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

New and revised standards and amendments effective
for the year ended 31 March 2013

During the year, the Company has adopted the new and
revised standards and amendments of HKFRSs which are
effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and are relevant
to its operations. The Company has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these new and revised standards and amendments
and considered that there has been no significant impact
on the Company’s results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Company’s accounting policies.

Standards and amendments to existing standards
that are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2013

The HKICPA has issued the following new or revised HKFRSs
standards and amendments to existing standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and have
not been early adopted by the Company:

2
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

(c)

New or revised standards and amendments

] B AR IS BT HE R R AS T

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

(BREFER) BN [HEHXES - AW LH Kz HEZZ25) ZI1EF]

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
(CBEABMBWMELER) F13R L 0EHE]

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits
(BEGER) 195 (KE:]) [ESEF]

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(BRMBHMERER) TR (2H TR RE-HEERCHREZ LAY 2IEF]

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(BAEGHER) FR 2@ TA S| cHEELTHMREZ AN ZI1ER]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(BB mEER) F9% (25 LA

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new standards and amendments to standards
and is not yet in a position to state whether they would have
a significant impact on the Company’s results and financial
position.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A F5 3R R MI 53

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal
annual rates in use are as follows:

Buildings
BF
Building services and support facilities

BF R E R R
Information technology facilities
BB R i

Operating Centres equipment
EER LR

Leasehold improvements

HEWHRIIE

Furniture and equipment

ERIVSE S

Motor vehicles

B

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2(e)).

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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(d)

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Company’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. They are included in non-current
assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months
from the balance sheet date, which are classified as current
assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated in the balance sheet
at cost plus/less any discount/premium amortised to date. The
discount or premium is amortised over the period to maturity
and included as interest income/expense in the statement of
comprehensive income. Provision is made when there is a
diminution in value other than temporary.

The carrying amounts of individual held-to-maturity
investments or holdings of the same investments are reviewed
at the balance sheet date in order to assess the credit risk and
whether the carrying amounts are expected to be recovered.
Provisions are made when carrying amounts are not expected
to be recovered and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as expense immediately.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to depreciation/amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

2
(d)

(e)
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(f)

(8

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grant or sponsorship

A government grant or sponsorship is recognised at fair value
when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the conditions attaching with it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are credited to the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food, beverage and operating supplies,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
are calculated using the weighted average costing method. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Company
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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(i)

()

(k)

(1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, investments with a maturity of three
months or less from the date of investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(i)

(3

(k)

)
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(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement scheme obligations

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme, the Mandatory Provident Fund, and pays
contributions to a publicly administered retirement benefit plan
on a mandatory basis. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when they are settled.

(m) Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the country where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue and other income comprise the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in
the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue and
other income are recognised as follows:

(i)  Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the lease.

(i) Management fee income is recognised when the services
are rendered.

(i)  Income from hotel operation is recognised upon
provision of services.

(iv) Car park fee and information technology facilities income
are recognised when the services are rendered and the
facilities are utilised.

(v) Income from leasing of centre facilities is recognised
when the facilities are utilised.

(vi) Other incidental income and services income are
recognised when the Company is entitled to the income
and the services are rendered.

(vii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
using the effective interest method.

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases, net
of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2
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(q)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.
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(@)

(ii)

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose to a variety of financial
risks: interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects of these risks on the Company’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s
management under policies approved by the Board. The
Company’s management identifies, evaluates and manages
significant financial risks in the Company’s business units. The
Board provides guidance for overall risk management.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest
rates will impact the earnings of the Company. The Company’s
major interest-bearing assets comprise bank deposits and
held-to-maturity investments (collectively “interest bearing
assets”) and are primarily issued at fixed rates which therefore
do not expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company has no significant borrowings other than the non
interest-bearing advance from its immediate holding company.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of the Company’s
counterparties to meet their obligations under financial
contracts. The Company is exposed to credit risk on cash
and bank balances, held-to-maturity investments, as well as
trade and other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries.

The Company’s bank deposits are deposited with banks of high
credit quality in Hong Kong.

For held-to-maturity investments, the Company adopts a
prudent policy to invest in securities only with very strong
investment-grade credit ratings and limit exposure to any single
investment. The exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

(@)

(i)

(i)
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AR R MI5E

(@)
(ii)

(iii)

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For rent receivable from tenants, credit checks are part of the
normal leasing process and stringent monitoring procedures
are in place to deal with overdue debts. In addition, the
Company reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
balance outstanding at each balance sheet date to ensure
that adequate provision for impairment losses is made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Company normally receives rents
in advance from tenants on a monthly basis and also has
policies in place to obtain rental deposits or bank guarantees
from tenants prior to commencement of leases.

For other trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, a credit policy is in place and the exposure to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These receivables are due ranging from
30 to 60 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 60 days overdue are generally required
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Company does not obtain collateral
from customers and the utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet
its current obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity
risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through operating cash flows and
advance from immediate holding company.

The Company’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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(@)
(iii)

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Company'’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Less than Between More than
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—£lF —ZEWME MENE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT
At 31 March 2013 M20134£3A31H
Trade and other payables A BR 3R R E At JE A5 B 76,500,547 = =
Rental and other deposits HREeREMEZE 25,434,971 13,637,039 23,251,431
Amount due to immediate ERNEEERAT
holding company IR 254,210,829 - -
At 31 March 2012 "201243A31H
Trade and other payables JE - BR SR e Eo At FE 9 3R IR 66,979,642 - -
Rental and other deposits HEEkeREMES 30,234,240 11,798,501 15,468,337
Amount due to immediate EREEERRATR
holding company IR 254,278,206 - -

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. The Company’s strategy remains
unchanged for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31
March 2013 and 2012, the Company was in net cash position.
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(b)

(@)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital risk management (continued)

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade and other
receivables and payables, balances with group companies are
a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar
financial instruments.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant effect on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

Impairment of the non-financial assets

The Company performs review for impairment of non-financial
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Company reviews certain indicators of potential
impairment such as reported sale and purchase prices,
market demand and general market conditions. The Company
considers the Cyberport Portion (comprising Cyberport 1,
Cyberport 2, Cyberport 3, Cyberport 4, the Arcade and the
Hotel but excluding Information Technology facilities) as a
portfolio of asset and identifies the cash-generating unit to
which the portfolio of asset belongs referring to the valuation
performed by external valuers.

Based on the Company’s best estimates, no provision for
impairment loss on the non-financial assets including the
Cyberport Portion is necessary.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

The Company follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Company evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Company fails to
keep these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore,
be measured at fair value not at amortised cost.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Management determines the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables based on the credit history or the
financial position of its customers and the current market
condition. Management will assess the adequacy of provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables at each balance
sheet date and significant level of judgement is required in
determining the adequacy of such provision.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business.

The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year
in which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax asset, which principally relates to
tax losses of the Company, depends on the management'’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different.
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(c)
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5 Revenue and other income 5

Revenue and other income recognised during the year are as
follows:

TN B E ftb YT\
FRUA R R ATER T

2013 2012

HK$ HK$
BT BT

5 Revenue and other income (continued) 5

Note: (continued)

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered
into between the Company and Skillful Limited, its fellow subsidiary, a
monthly services income was received for the provision of information
technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion of the Cyberport. Total amount received during the year was
HK$1,069,654 (2012: HK$1,069,654).
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Y N\ B H i T N\ ()
B ()

RIE2005F3 A12B A A AR E R ZKT B A
A]Skillful Limited 2 5] 89 AR 7% 13 5% - N2 A5k
B EEDNREEAREEREMRS
FAABERBEEA - AFEDWBEES
1,069,654/ 7T (20124F : 1,069,654/ 7T) °

Revenue B

Rental income e WA 172,130,420 156,642,796 6 é T ﬁk zlg

Building management income MEERIA 6 Staff costs

: o 2013 2012

Management fee income EEEBRA 72,597,415 75,214,861 HKS HKS
Car park fee income FEZRA 8,129,533 7,770,475 e — o
Other facilities income RS ON 19,258,435 17,275,603 & Bk
99,985,383 100,260,939 Salaries and allowances FreEEah 87,008,017 82,640,561

Income from hotel operation BRI A 124,742,854 120,429,597 Unutilised annual leave AERAZFR 2,231,694 1,821,296

Information technology facilities income AR A 4,183,815 3,709,063 Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 38 i1 2 78 & it 5& 3,443,523 2,445 324

Fees for usage of Technology Centre B O E R RS UA
equipment and services 2,809,317 3,272,332 92,683,234 86,907,181

Other incidental income HA B A 1,674,302 2,036,019

405,526,091 386,350,746 A
Analysed into: TV s
Other income Hithg N
2013 2012

Realisation of deferred income (note 21) PRI W = 238 (B 3E21) 803,521 13,366,749 HK$ HKS

Services income from fellow subsidiaries EEINIENSLEGTON s 5t T
(note) (F5E) 4,201,654 4,201,654 .

Interest income from held-to-maturity RAEZIHARE Hotel /@Fi . 23,479,460 20488810
investments, net of amortisation of IH B R B YA Operating Centres %@T/u 10,671,665 9,443,651
premium of HK$8,449,290 (2012: MBS E®YEE Corporate office UNEIE) = 28,532,109 26,974,690
HK$6,199,974) 8,449,290/ 7t (2012

16,199,974 7T) 5,300,934 7,266,212 92,683,234 86,907,181

Interest income on designated bank balance $§7F #R 1745 42 Kl B Uk A = 1,691,275

Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A BULA 5,490,145 1,796,671

15,796,254 28,322,561

Note: ek -

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October 2003 entered R #E2003510A25H A2 7 H H [F & M

into between the Company and Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary BRBEBHGE (MNBER)ERA A

Development) Limited (“HKCAD"), its fellow subsidiary, a fixed (THKCAD 1) # 5] 2 B i 1 - AR B FEFl

monthly services income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCAD AFEEFIHM (ATERE [EEIBH])M

commencing from November 2003 for the provision of services by the 2B MR AR  B2003F11 A M6 E A

Company to facilitate the operation of the private residential buildings A] [m HKCADUR B 125,6005% 7T /Y [ & AR 75 4

(the “Residential Portion”) of the Cyberport. The fee was revised A ° A2006%F4 B F120084F5 A #E » LIBIRE

to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 2 BHE T A& F A200,0005% 7T F261,0008

commencing from May 2008. Total amount received during the year TC ° NEE B W 4ERE 43,132,000 7T (2012

was HK$3,132,000 (2012: HK$3,132,000). £ :3,132,000/% 7T ) ©
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited ERERGETERRAA
Annual Report 2012/13 F3R 2012/13



148

Notes to the Financial Statements

AR RMIGE

7 Directors’ remuneration

The Directors, who represent key management personnel of
the Company, having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, did not
receive or will not receive any fees or emoluments in respect of
their services to the Company during the year (2012: Nil).

8 Five highest paid individuals

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Company during the year

are as follows:

2013 2012

EEME

EERANFICHEREEAR HAR
2 EENEEAREDNREORE
T I ERFARE AR R
Z BRI RS AT (T B SR Rh (20124 ¢
&) o

hfifMEsS <At

AEEARLEFHEEHALZFHE
LIE

9 Government rent and rates

9 iR ZEfN

149

HK$ HK$

T I

Hotel o I 1,161,200 1,165,200
Operating Centres BB L 395,160 140,640
Other Cyberport Portion S B B A E 15 11,108,314 9,473,639
12,664,674 10,779,479

10 Other operating expenses

10 HftEE X

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BTT BT BT
Salaries and allowances Frée HERL 10,669,321 10,027,356 Insurance 1R
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund  3& 14 A TE 4 2 91,250 60,000 _ Hotel —H s 320,380 216,800
10,760,571 10,087,356 — Other Cyberport Portion —HS B E AR5 1,840,193 1,726,295
2,160,573 1,943,095
Professional fees HERBER 5,597,871 7,363,019
. - Marketing, promotion and project expenses T35 #E /& & IE B X H 13,597,406 13,369,767
The emoluments fell within the followings bands: BTz EEWNT Travelling expenses SEE 434,210 734,164
Transportation EHEA 1,877,103 480,000
Other hotel operation expenses HipB/EEES H 49,217,167 48,687,619
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 0% Other operation expenses on Operating BERL  HMEE
1,500,000 77T = - Centres S 16,538,542 21,512,299
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L= Other miscellaneous expenses HapzEma S 2,523,927 1,761,680
2,000,000 7% 7T 3 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T = 91,946,799 95,851,643
2,500,000 /& 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ &
3,000,000 /& 7T 2 1
b 5
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited ERERGETERRAA
Annual Report 2012/13 F3R 2012/13
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11 Income tax expense 11 FrIEHMXH 11 Income tax expense (continued) 11 ErfEHM X H @
(a) No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the Company NA RN E AT (] JE AR B ) - (d) Deferred income tax assets are not recognised for remaining ~ (d) ¢ 7 i i K 3¢ i 2R B4 0 F1| 9 38 48 B B
has no assessable profit for the year (2012: Nil). Ub 0 4 3 B TS B B 4 (2012 temporary differences arising from tax losses carried forwards ERZO AT REHIBEERR
Fom)o due to uncertainty of realisation of the related tax benefit GRIBEEZREESERTHER 82
through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2013, the 201393 A31H AR A B IEE
(b) The tax on the Company’s loss for the year differs from the AARAFEFB 2 HIERBERES Company has unrecognised temporary differences arising from B AR TR R ZRE A18.288%
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of Hong EAREMAE B RmE=00T tax losses of HK$1,828 million (2012: HK$1,693 million). The 7T (20124 : 16.9318 /8 7T ) - BB E 1B
Kong as follows: tax losses have no expiry date and are yet to be agreed by the WERHY - BAGR S RER -
Inland Revenue Department.
2013 2012
HK$ HK$ e
a7 N 12 Loss for the year 12 £ NEE
Loss for the year FRER (134,374,672)  (134,532,727) Loss for the year is stated after crediting and charging the FABEEFTARNKRTYIIER :
following:
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% 1£16.5% (20124F : 16.5% ) <
(2012: 16.5%) MEFE BB (22,171,821) (22,197,900) 2013 2012
Income not subject to tax EIBRIZ WA (1,045,494) (807,834)
Tax losses not recognised KHRZHEEA 23,217,315 23,005,734 HK$ HK$
BT BT
- - Crediting: EFIANER:
Rental income less outgoings of AW AMBKRREZ
. e Ao . N . k=
(c) Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities (c) CHEIBNEEHE (EE) HK$11,108,314 (2012: HK$9,473,639) 11,108,314 7T
recognised =R (20124 : 9,473,639
. BIT) 161,022,106 147,169,157
The movements of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities ELERIE (BE) BEFAZEEHMN Reversal of provision for impairment of JRE W2 B TR M 4B £ ) 8%
during the year are as follows: T receivables 336,420 147,840
Bepreciation Charging: E2RIER:
allowance in . . PIEg
excess of related Cost of inventories FERAR 16,164,415 15,164,924
T Auditor’s remuneration ZERD B & 385,000 506,000
Tax losses BUEH Provision for impairment of receivables JRE UK BR SRR (B B 1 5,066,248 4,327,628
BEESE FESRE Loss on disposals of property, plant and LEME - e R
HKS HKG HE HES equipment, net REZ BB T 813,289 -
BT BT BT BT
Deferred income tax arising from:  EEHERHE:
At 1 April 2011 R2011F4A81H (35,166,169) 35,711,868 (545,699) -
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss BRI/ (5T A) (281,463) 994,352 (712,889) -
At 31 March 2012 and #2012%3 73318 K
1 April 2012 20124718 (35,447 632) 36,706,220 (1,258,588) -
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss BRI/ (5T A) (4,394,688) 4,218,900 175,788 -
At 31 March 2013 #2013%3A31H (39,842,320) 40,925,120 (1,082,800) -
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited BERHBEEEARAA
Annual Report 2012/13 F3R 2012/13
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13 Property, plant and equipment

13 ¥ - s REfE

2013
Building
services and Information Centres
Buildings support technology equipment Leasehold  Furniture and
held for rental  Hotel Building facilities facilities (Notec)  Improvements equipment  Motor Vehicles
HAIELA L EL B R HED

b4 £ EEETF XERE  EHBERE (Mzkc) JRIE RRERS g

HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

AT L AT AT T AT #n AT #r
Cost S
At 1 April 2012 A012F4A18  3,557,123,776 274,937,912 1152971498 234,296,401 60,886,254 23,860,639 64,568,373 1,018,019 5,369,662,872
Additions »E - - - 14,125,014 - 7,404,853 27,408,019 - 48937886
Disposals hE - - (3,250,834)  (9,924,833) - (576,254)  (1,509,864) - (15,261,785)
At31March 2013 #A2013%3A31H 3,557,123,776 274,937,912 1,149,720,664 238,496,582 60,886,254 30,689,238 90,466,528 1,018,019 5,403,338,973
Accumulated
depreciation RiHE
At 1 April 2012 M012F4A18 615,136,564 47,642,672 935,096,050 227,924,190 59,822,896 8,400,174 27,080,741 579,477 1,921,682,764
Charge fortheyear ~ FRITE 77,142,965 5955334 109,580,820 3,471,045 640,501 2,492,493 8,697,732 122,001 208,102,891
Written back
on disposals AtERE - - (2,816,937)  (9,924,833) - (422,997)  (1,276,943) - (14,441,710)
At31March 2013 #2013F3A318 692,279,529 53,598,006 1,041,859,933 221,470,402 60,463,397 10,469,670 34,501,530 701,478 2,115,343,945
Net book value REFE
At31March 2013 #2013%3A31H 2,864,844,247 221,339,906 107,860,731 17,026,180 422,857 20,219,568 55,964,998 316,541  3,287,995,028

2012
Building
services and Information Centres
Buildings supp technology equipment Leasehold Furniture and
held for rental  Hotel Building facili facilities (Notec)  Improvements equipment  Motor Vehicles
HAELA )

ZBF L& iz g EL]

HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$

BT AT BT BT BT BT BT BT AT
Cost A&
At 1 April 2011 WOIF4RIR  3567,13776 274937912 1152971498 230,540,348 59,935,404 19,217,690 49,094,657 797882 5344619167
Additions wE - - - 3,800,227 950,850 4,642,949 15473716 220,137 25,147879
Disposals k3 - - - (104,174) - - - - (104,174)
At31March 2012  H2012%3A318  3567,13776 274937912 1152971498 234,296,401 60,886,254 23,860,639 64,568,373 1018019  5,369,662,872
Accumulated
depreciation RiHTE
At 1 April 2011 H01154A18 537,.993,5% 41687341 819798900  224997,053 59,003,981 6,383,340 20,679,600 479490  1,711,023,301
Charge forthe year ~ FRHME 77,142,968 5,955,331 115,297,150 3,031,311 818915 2,016,834 6,401,141 99987 210,763,637
Written back
on disposals AtERE - - - (104,174) - - - - (104,174)
At3IMarch2012  R201243A31H 615,136,564 47642672 935096050  227924,190 59,822,8% 8400,174 27,080,741 579477 1,921,682,764
Net ook value RERE
At31March 2012 W201243A318 2941987212 227,295,240 217,875,448 6,372,211 1,063,358 15,460,465 37,487,632 433542 3447980,108

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted
the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the
immediate holding company for a term of 50 years at a lump
sum initial premium of HK$1,000.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease
agreement (“Sub-lease Agreement”) with the immediate holding
company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (“Cyberport Portion”) is sub-leased to
the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated in Hong Kong and held on a sub-
lease from the immediate holding company for a term of 50
years less the last 3 days thereof commencing from 22 May
2000.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship
Centre and Technology Centre funded by government grant and
used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2013, the fair value of the buildings held for
rental (including the associated building services and support
facilities with their carrying value of HK$97 million (2012:
HK$195 million)) amounted to HK$6,043 million (2012:
HK$5,730 million). The aggregate carrying value of such assets
amounted to HK$2,962 million (2012: HK$3,137 million).
The fair value of the buildings held for rental (including the
associated building services and support facilities) as at 31
March 2013 was determined based on a valuation carried out
by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent
professional valuer.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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13 )% HF{ERHRE @

B3

FA20006F5 A22H » B & BUR A
BRI R — R pSE R E
A8 A BE I ERBO695R . it - —IR 1
= 3 s (B 41,0008 7T - £ A B /850
Fo

F20005F5 248 » AN A 7] B H % %
R BER — o M ([2 8%
) BEZAEBE ARFKE
B A B 0 T — IR AL FSE TR AR
BN BR8O695% 2 H i — AR L it
(r&iSEakin )  ARREAXNME

BUEETUNES MERERAF
DA - o8& 8200065722
B FA%RZA9505 - MR H R 3K -

ROREI BT E) 2 & B AR
$EEIH B M EB R OMBER O
AR

M2013%3A318 - #HAEHA 2
FHAFEE (BEABNETRE
RS IR NG - BRI (E A9,7008 8 T
(2012%F : 1.95B 8 L) ) 560.431%
7T (20124F : 573018 # 7T ) © ia L
& B A BR TE{E 529.62{8 7 7T (2012
F:3137FB) - ZSHEELH
ZEF (RERABNETRISEYE
M) 20133 A31A 2 A FEE
Ty B BE G ER S N BRRERE
B (EFH)BRARETHEE

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

Annual Report 2012/13

EHAHEEEEGRAR
3R 2012/13



154 155

Notes to the Financial Statements
A FSR R M5

14 HEZREPEEAKE 15 Trade and other receivables 15 FEWERF & H it FEUL TR IE

2013 2012

14 Held-to-maturity investments

HIS ke
!-IKE ‘HK_$ T PETT
BT BTT _ N
_ o N o e Trade receivables JRE L BR R 17,327,992 22,283,613
Listed fixed interest debt securities: Lt Eﬂ %%ﬁ%a’é Less: Provision for impairment of S50+ g B 2 TR
~in Hong Kong, at cost —REBLM receivables (note 15(d)) (F3E15(d)) (6,562,422) (7,635,395)
K AR B BR 126,934,669 113,039,500
Amortisation of premium GBS (2,862,457) (3,178,319) Trade receivables — net FEU AR TR —F 5 10,765,570 14,648,218
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - Ze M
124,072,212 109,861,181 other receivables H b e W g I8 13,865,467 10,115,452
Unlisted debt securities, at cost FELEMEBHES 24,631,037 24,763,670
RSB BR 309,871,606 349,313,500
Amortisation of premium i (B 2 5 (5,904,886) (4,177,234)
All prepayments, deposits and other receivables are expected BT —EEFTR—FUREKERN
e 7???1976767'?97 77??31?67572?6757 to be recovered or recognised as expenses by the Company 1,862,745/ 7T (20124F : T) 4 » R
- within one year, except for the amount of HK$1,862,745 RIFTATEN FUE ~ e FIE b e i 5108
Net book amount REFE 428,038,932 454,997,447 (2012: Nil) which is expected to be recovered after one year. TR —FRKREKER ST -
(a) The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables (@) FEURBRZR R H 4ib & Y3k IE 2 BRE
The net book amount is analysed as follows: FEFEITAT : approximate their fair values and are denominated in EYHEEANFEEZAT ST
Hong Kong dollars. RERL o
HK$ HK$ (b)  The credit terms given to the customers are ranging from (b) HTEFPHEEBAROREIOK-
BT BT 0-30 days.
mzta:;g \;v\glz:;jefrar ﬁﬁi*isitui:ﬁﬁﬁ ;23';;3'312 ;;g;gggf (c) Trade receivables that exceed the credit terms are (c) ?ﬁ?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁZ%%ﬂE%ﬂﬁiﬂ’E
A e 1o not considered impaired. As at 31 March 2013, trade SREREIE - PA2013F3H31H - fE
428,038,932 454 997 447 receivables of HK$7,640,123 (2012: HK$11,157,909) Y B 507,640,123 7T (20124 :
o were past due but not impaired. These relate to a 11,157,909/ 7T ) B %1 H  1B 0 &
Market value of listed debt securities tHEEESR A 123,763,653 110,652,182 number of independent customers for whom there is BB ° 2 5 SR R TR
Market value of unlisted debt securities FLmEHKESHS2TE 304,157,496 344,978,883 no recent history of default. The aging analysis of these BN ENELRS - ZFE
trade receivables is as follows: IWER R BRI D AT A0 T -
427,921,149 455,631,065

The held-to-maturity investments represent bonds with
maturities ranging from 6 to 27 months (2012: 3 to 32 months)
and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The market
values of listed and unlisted held-to-maturity investments are
based upon the market price of the debt securities quoted
over-the-counter. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
balance sheet date is the carrying amount of held-to-maturity
investments.

The Company has not reclassified any financial assets
measured at amortised cost during the year (2012: Nil).

FEZIHAERERNBTREMZE

HEH B B6E27{0 A 1~ % (2012
3E3RMEA) - EMMIFLHHAEE

MR &RE 2 M EDREFESF S
RO TSERORE - RNEEAFHE
MERAEERREFEEIMAKE
B R E {E ©

ARBFARGRHEMIRE A AE
ZEMEESHRE (20129 &) -

2013 2012

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13

HK$ HK$
BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired AR BRI E 3,125,447 3,490,309
Less than one month pastdue ~ @#EURUEA 0 4,307,813 4,630,010
One to three months past due B EAL-31E A 990,839 3,097,062
Over three months past due B EA3ME A LA 2,341,471 3,430,837
7,640,123 11,157,909
10,765,570 14,648,218
BRHBEEERRARA

3R 2012/13
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15 PR BRN B H tth FEULFKIR

(%)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(d) The Company has assessed if there is any impairment on an  (d) AR RIRIEEURBR A &R 2 BRER 54T
individual customer basis based on aging analysis of trade BAEEE BRAR BPEBRIT
receivables balance, historical bad debt rates, repayment ¥B2OMUFHEEEERRF HIR
patterns, customer credit worthiness and industry trend B - 7A2013F3A31H  EWER R Z
analysis. As at 31 March 2013, the amount of the provision o 1B B 556,562,4225 7T (20124 -
for impairment of trade receivables was HK$6,562,422 (2012: 7,635,395 7T ) °
HK$7,635,395).

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade FEMEBR OB BB < BB FF| T
receivables are as follows:

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

#IT BT

At the beginning of the year F4 7,635,395 3,455,607
Provision for impairment of receivables F N E W RO E R E

during the year 5,066,248 4,327,628

Unused amount written back RE)AFIER E (336,420) (147 840)

Uncollectible amounts written off AN AT Y [B] FRIE 7 8 (5,802,801) -

At the end of the year FR 6,562,422 7,635,395

(e) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheetdate (e) REE R FiEEZ &= EERER AL
is the fair value of each class of trade and other receivables 258 R UK AR R N EL At FE I 2 A
mentioned above. The Company does not hold any collateral FEE ARFNERERE,PZE R
as security other than rental deposits and guarantees from ERINZ AR R AEIRFE o
tenants.

16 Balances with group companies 16 EE AR Z&ER
EEAT EHARER 28 RKE

Balances with group companies are unsecured, interest free

and repayable on demand. The amounts approximate their fair HEE 2 FUR - x ERIEEA N FEE
values and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B WA T REA -

17 Cash and bank balances

157

17 RE RRITER

HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITEGLFERS 92,135,505 46,006,083
Bank deposits with maturity under three R EE AR A AR B ey
months at acquisition RITER 188,679,835 100,872,515
Cash and cash equivalents BehIRLEMBEEER 280,815,340 146,878,598
Bank deposits with maturity over three MR EE A& A3ME A
months at acquisition B ERRER1TIF 3N 324,794,585 401,038,980
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTHET 605,609,925 547,917,578

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

18 Trade and other payables

18 BRI K

R MRITEFNEREEEEQFE
BT WABTRER -

H BT 5IR

2013 2012

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade payables JERTBR R 50,198,814 37,645,478
Other payables and accruals B sRIB R ERTE A 26,301,733 29,334,164
76,500,547 66,979,642

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate
their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

HAFEERD

RS BR AR R B At B A R TR 2 Bk B

WIABTAER

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13
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19 Development maintenance fund

It represents a fund received by the Company in accordance
with the terms of a project agreement entered into among
the Company, Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings
Limited (its immediate holding company), HKCAD, Pacific
Century Cyberworks Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited)

19 BREBES

FZEESEBRIBEHARNR  BEHBHE
BREBRERAR (ARRZEEER
A7) ~HKCAD BB N BR A
A (R [ERBMBERAA]) MEM
AR A RIN200055 417 B Tk aT &Y

21 Deferred income

Property,

Government grants

BR#BEE

21 IEEU &=

Property,

Sponsorship

&

Annual Report 2012/13

and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 May 2000 (the “Project GBS 8 MR 2 IR E S plant and plant and
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, the purpose FRIE - IREZBIS BT 8l sz B A equipment Others Subdotal  equipment Others Sub-total
of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common 2D AERE RAEB G A HHE P A Y ERY 1
telecommunications, media and information technology MEGERAERAEMN  FEMEAR LB i it R& £ it
facilities available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared i (BB HEARE]) © HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Cyberport facilities”). BT BT AT AT BT BT BT
Cost KA
The Company received an amount of HK$500 million upon ANABR2003F11 A B ZBE S ETT At 1 April 2012 R201244A18 6,892,181 53,972,626 60,864,807 1,369,032 - 1369,032 62,233,839
provisional assessment of the fund in November 2003. The AT 1 T R B — BB T 2 K Additions =i - 114,000 114,000 - - - 114,000
fund was subject to final assessment, which was agreed by T8 o A S AT RET T B Write off of projects completed & 8|78k i 8 (4,750,867) (48,414,717) (53,165,584)  (582,590) - (582,590) (53,748,174)
the relevant parties to be HK$451 million on 1 August 2011. F A A2011F8 1A EK % R = Refunded EE - (5564722)  (5,564,722) - - - (5,564722)
An amount of HK$49 million was returned to the operating REREE ST T AL SUEBTT - X IR At 31 March 2013 WOI3E3A3IE 2141314 107,187 2,248,501 786,442 . 786442 3,034,043
account of the Cyberport Project during the year ended 31 =Rt Y=Y G R ) b k- [ G ————
March 2012. B %=0012%383]1 A IFEE NEB Accumulated amortisation R 5t 8
T ] At 1 April 2012 H010E4B1R (5911,789) (48414,716) (54326,505)  (1,145,033) - (1,45033) (55471538)
Credited to statement of FAZENER
Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the EREENMEEMERRIBBEER B c‘omprehens‘we e Ry LSl PRl ) QR S
) . N . ) ) Write off of projects SRl
costs of the acquired assets will be transferred from the EE%%’QEZW$H§%?§E&%’H§%@ competed 4750867 48414717 53165586 582,500 C sease0 53748174
Development Maintenance Fund (“DMA”) account to the RPN Wt ABAREEBIERSF -
Capital Reserve account. At 31 March 2013 M2013%3A31H (1,715,353) (78,171)  (1,793,524) (733,361) - (733,361)  (2,526,885)
During the year, Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$12,895,051 BEMEESER LT 12,895,051 Carying amount FEE
S . T e — e . o At31 March 2013 2013534318 425,961 29,016 454,977 53,081 - 53,081 508,058

(2012: Nil) were acquired and funded by the DMA. 7T B B B B A R (20124 -
Accordingly, this amount has been transferred from the DMA ) BB ARB 2K ZEK
to Capital Reserve account in accordance with the Company’s HEREREEESHNG Wit AE
accounting policy. AEERSH -

20 Facilities maintenance fund 20 FRIEEEEE
On 5 September 2006, the Company, its fellow subsidiary, and 200659 H5H  RAF] - H [ R B
immediate holding company entered into a third agreement NEINMEEERAT BEARRER
to amend the Project Agreement of the Cyberport Project NAIREMBERAREIIE=ZRE
with PCCW Limited and Cyber-Port Limited. Pursuant to the TEIS BT EI R - BIBEZE = IXIERT
third agreement, a maintenance fund of HK$50,000,000 for ik - AN 5] &S — 25,0008 7 T B
the purpose of maintenance and upgrading of the Cyberport HIEESRIA  AERE RAERE [ 2
Portion was received by the Company. It will be transferred BE ] RIBARF ZGETBUR - 3%
upon acquisition of the assets at the cost of the replaced EREBNEENEERLBHEER
assets, to the Capital Reserve account in accordance with the MEEMRAGTAERFEREF -
Company’s accounting policy.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited ERRGEEERRAA
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RIS SRR MISE

21 Deferred income (continued)

21 IEEYR Z= ()

23 Note to the statement of cash flows

161

23 RERERME

Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash generated from

FABRELZXEBREEZREZ

operations: HER:
Government grants Sponsorship
Be ¢ £
b 2013 2012
roperty, Property,
plant and plantand HK$ HK$
QOthers Sub-total equipment Others Sub-total T T
ENE T e /
R Eft et R f £ o Loss for the year FREE (134,374,672)  (134,532,727)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT BT B L L T Adjustments for: AR
gtosltA 12011 g‘;‘(s)ll@lﬂlﬁ 5,884,121 48,385,229 54,269,350 1,369,032 3,254,652 4,623,684 58,893,034 Depreciation il 208,102,891 210,763,637
pri A 884, 385, 269, 369, 254, 623, 893, - . . Se gk
Addiions oy 1008060 776178 8769858 ) )  a76985 Realisation of deferred income FREW R ER \ (803,521) (13,366,749)
Write off of projects completed 5t I52 % 3% 8 - (1836509) (1,836,509 (3254652) (3,254,652  (5091,161) Interest income from held-to-maturity BEZIEAKRE
Refunded R - (3378%) (337,89 - - - (337,892) investments 5B AR WA (5,300,934) (7,266,212)
At31 March 2012 H012E3A31E 6892181 53972626 60864807 1369032 - 1369032 62233839 Interest income on bank deposits RITFRFE WA (5,490,145) (1,796,671)
. . S AR T AT B
P p——————rr Interest income on designated bank EERITEGBAH
At 1 Apri 2011 HONEARIE (5173239 (7873543) (3046782)  (894516) (3254652  (4149168)  (47,195950) balance A - (1,691,275)
Credited to statement of FAREURER Provision of impairment of receivables, net  J& U BR ZUR (B
comprehensive income (738550) (12,377,682  (13,116,232) (250,617) - (250,517)  (13,366,749) BB FEm 4,729,828 4179788
Write off of projects FHEITRR L i Is of HEME - e S o
completed - 183509 1836509 - 3254652 3254652 5091161 0ss on disposals of property, = bl
: plant and equipment, net R EEFE 813,289 -
At 31 March 2012 R201243A318 (5911,789)  (48/414,716)  (54,326,505) (1,145,033) - (1,145,033)  (55,471,538)
*********************************************************************** Operating profit before working LEECEFNZLE
Carrying amount REE capital changes ikl 67,676,736 56,289,791
At 31 March 2012 R201243A318 980,392 5,557,910 6,538,302 223,999 - 223,999 6,762,301 ) . / ’ ! ! !
(Increase)/decrease in deferred EEE NS
rental receivable (#hn) (1,898,694) 7,102,158
Note: Government grants are subject to terms and conditions specified et : BUSHBIE 2 AR ERT S Decrease in inventories FER D 134 144,148
in the project agreements. Unused balances of government R 2 IR AR - R T B SE K R AR Increase in trade and other receivables JE Uk BE 2R 1 H A E Uy
grants are required to be repaid to the Government of the REKRER BRBEEERES 2
HKSAR upon completion of the projects and submission of the R BT - . HIEE N (Rt (5,520,719)
N . — Increase in amounts due from fellow A EES =N
subsidiaries SKIEIE N (1,132,297) (646,740)
q n (Decrease)/increase in trade and JE AT AR SR N H At E A5
22 Share capltal 22 lel: other payables B CRA) /i (1,917,197) 13,149,584
2013 2012 Increase in rental and other deposits Tﬂzﬁéz)}i )
HK$ HKS E iz e 4,822,363 3,425,891
BT BT Net cash generated from operations REXBELEZ
Authorised: EE BE& 5 63,527,007 73,944,113
1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 1,000/ =K EELE T
ZEmK 1,000 1,000
Issued and fully paid: SEITRAR:
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each IR EREELET
2 EmAR 2 2
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited BERHBEEEARAA
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B RS R R M5

24 R RREWHEE 25 KIE (m)

(b) At 31 March 2013, the total future minimum lease payments  (b) 201343 A31H 1R E 1~ Bl 8 B9 45
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: EHE  RRSEHEENKBELT

2013 2012
2013 2012 HK$ HK$

24 Future minimum rental receipts 25 Commitments (continued)

receivable

BETAHBOEERE  FRAHR
EEKA SR

The future aggregate minimum rental receipts receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

HK$ HK$ T PETT
EBT BT Information technology facilities FE 1T & AR 3 51
In the first year F—F 144,536,498 109,647,025 maintenance service fee payable (note) RERBER (M=)
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF
(BIEgREMT) 155,774,509 94,097,193 In the first year F—F 12,520,414 13,705,461
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZERF
300,311,007 203,744,218 (REERME) 19,655,704 32,176,117
32,176,118 45,881,578
The Company’s operating leases are for terms ranging from RABZEEHLFZEEZHERN
1 to 7 years (2012: 1 to 8 years). TFIFERTFEDNE (20124 : 1-8%F)
Note: The commitment in respect of the information technology fizE: ENEAEERERERBERZ
facilities maintenance service fee payable is subject to certain EEAIRE RS2 E S ONIGEGE

25 7?1;% adjustments in accordance with the terms of the System TREFE
= Operation Contract.

25 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2013 not (a) 201343831 H A 7E B 7% 3=

provided for in the financial statements were as follows: B2 RN EREEMNT : 26 Related party transactions 26 %ﬁﬂgﬁ X5
The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the RRRHERRRBTE BT EA AR
HK$ HK$ HKSAR via Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance FET2ERE REFESHMNLE
T T with HKAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, issued by HKICPA, Bz CBEEFHER) B245% [BaR
Contracted for 2274 31,672,878 B government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly HEE MR NEESEEE
Authorised but not contracted for BB R T4 16,000,000 B or indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly HEZEF K ZEBFERNERNTE
influenced by the Government of HKSAR are defined as related ZBIEENEEREMB AR 54
47,672,878 parties of the Company. On that basis, related parties include AZNRQ R Z BT o DAL A AR - B

the immediate holding company and its subsidiaries (other
than the Company), other government-related entities and
their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations in which the
Company is able to control or exercise significant influence and
key management personnel of the Company.

HERERERARREMBAR (B
ARESN) ~ A REFHEBHE R X
HfB AR - AR B REHIREMER
TEZAEMEBRBNMEER  URARFZ
FEEEAE-

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2012/13
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RS IR RMIEE

26

27

Related party transactions (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, approximately
3% (2012: 3%) of the Company’s revenue are rental
income, building management income and other facilities
income derived from the Government of HKSAR and other
government-related entities. All these services are conducted
in the normal course of business and in accordance with the
Company’s pricing policy.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, for the purpose of the
related party transaction disclosures, remuneration of the
Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 7.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to the current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in the
current year.

26

27

AR5 )

BE2013F3A3IALFERN - KBE
AEERBNMEMBFREEENHES
WA~ I ERUA R EAD R IEU AL
HARRBWA Z23% (20125 :3% ) °
B ELRBHRIER XHRALQE
ZEBBRET

BRRATBHRERTEMBOEE LR
P REERIN AERBEB TR P 2 WFE -
AREEZZHMERME7HHE-

b F
EFURBTEIEHE  UHaREE
PEEVERE 4230 ey
SR BRI -
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